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THIS ISSUE AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT?”) IS ENTERED ON THIS 28" DAY OF

FEBRUARY, 2023 AT NOIDA

BY AND BETWEEN

SHARE SECURITIES INDIA LIMITED, a company incorporated under the laws of India and
having its registered office at 1701, 17th Floor, Dalal Street Commercial Co-operative Society
Limited, Road 5E, Block 53, Zone 5, Gift City, , Gandhi Nagar, Gujarat, 382355(hereinafter
referred to as the “Issuer” or the “Company”, which expression shall unless repugnant to the
context or meaning thereof, be deemed to mean and include its successors and permitted assigns)

of the FIRST PART;

AND

CORPORATE PROFESSIONALS CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED a company
incorporated under the laws of India and having its registered office at D-28, South Extension I,
New Delhi 110049, India (hereinafier referred to as “CPCPL”, which expression shall, unless it
be repugnant to the context or meaning thereof, be deemed to mean and include its successors

and permitted assigns) of the SECOND PART;
CPCPL is referred to as “Lead Manager”.

The Company and the Lead Manager are collectively referred to as “Parties” and individually as
T
.’}0 A‘? =
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WHEREAS
|

A. The Cﬁmpan}r is proposing to undertake an issue of Equity shares of face value Rs. 10
each (the “Equity Shares”) along with Detachable Warrants, for an amount not
exceeding Rs. 80405 lakhs, on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders (“Rights
Securities”), in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Securiitics and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended (the “SEBI ICDR Regulations™) and other applicable

statutory and/or regulatory requirements (“Issue™).

B. The Board of Directors and the Rights Issue Committee, pursuant to their resolutions
dated December 26, 2022, January 16, 2023, February 15, 2023 and February 22, 2023,

respectively, have authorized the Issue.

C. The Company has approached the Lead Manager to manage the Issue. The Lead Manager
|
has accepted the engagement on the terms and conditions set out in the Engagement

Letter (as defined hereinafter) and this Agreement.

D. The fees and expenses payable to the Lead Manager for managing the Issue have been

mutually agreed upon and documented under the Engagement Letter.

d in connection with the Issuc_. =

=
"




NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises,
covenants, and agreements set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties

hereby agree as follows:

Definitions

Capitalized terms used in this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, shall have the
meanings ascribed to such terms as set out below. All other capitalized terms used herein and not
otherwise defined, shall have the same meanings assigned to such terms in the letter of offer for

the Issue (the “Letter of Offer™).

“Associates” mean such entities which are consolidated in the consolidated financial statements

of the Company, excluding Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures;

“Affiliates” with respect to any Party shall mean (a) any other person that, directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, Controls or is Controlled by or is under common Control
with such Party, (b) any other person which is a holding or subsidiary or associate or joint

venture of such Party, and/or (c) any other person in which such Party has a “significant

influence™ or which has “significant influence™ over such Party, where “significant influence”




beneficially holding, directly or indirectly through one or rnc}r:; intermediaries, a 10% or more
interest in the voting power of that person are presumed to have a significant influence over that
person; In addition, the “Promoters”, the members of the “Promoter Group” and “Group
Companies™ are deemed to be Affiliates of the Company. For the purposes of this definition, {1
the term “holding Company” “subsidiary” and “Associates” have the meanings set forth in
Sections 2[4&;}, 2(87) and 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 respectively and(ii) the terms
“Promoter”, “Promoter Group” and “Group Companies” shall have the respective meanings set
forth in the EEEBI ICDR Regulations. For avoidance of doubt, any reference in this Agreement to
Affiliates includes any party that would be deemed an “affiliate™ under Rule 405 or Rule 501(b)
under the U.S. Securities Act, as applicable;

*Agreement” shall mean this agreement between the Parties hereto;
(
“Anti-Corruption Laws"” shall have the meaning as ascribed to it in Clause 8.47 of this

Agrwrn?:m; |
“Applicable Law™ means any applicable law, regulation, byelaw, rule, guideline, circular, order,
notification, regulatory policy (including any requirement under, or notice of, any regulatory
body), liFtirtg Hfrﬂv:mcnts with the Stock Exchanges (as defined hereafter), compulsory guidance,
rule, order or decree of any court or any arbitral authority, or directive, delegated or subordinate
legislation in any applicable jurisdiction, within or outside India, including any applicable law in
any releyant ji.[ﬁisdictinn, including the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, the
SCRA as defined hereafter, the SCRR (as defined hereaﬁer}l, the Companies Act 2013 (as
defined hereinafter), the SEBI ICDR Regulations 2018, the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing ©bligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing

RO AR
Regulations™), the Foreign Exchange gement Ath 1999 and rules and regulations
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thereunder (“FEMA"™), and the guidelines, instructions, rules, communications, circulars and
regulations issued by the Government of India (“Gol”), the Registrar of Companies (as defined
hereinafter), SEBI, RBI (as defined hereinafter), the Stock Exchanges or by any other
Governmental Authority and similar agreements, rules, regulations, orders and directions in

force, whether in India or overseds;

“Applicant” shall mean Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee (s) who are entitled to
apply or make an application for the Rights Securities pursuant to this Issue in terms of the Letter

of Offer.

“Application™ shall mean application made through (i) submission of the Application Form or
plain paper Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic application
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process,

to subscribe to the Rights Securities at the [ssue Price.

“Application Form” shall mean an application form used by an Applicant to make an

application for the Rights Securities in this Issue.

“Closing Date” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 17.1 of this Agreement;

“Companies Act” shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder:

i ._l". Uppal
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Reg No.& 1387
GB.Nagar ~%




|
“Control” has the meaning as set out under the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended, and the
terms: “Cuutﬁlling” and “Controlled” shall be construed accordingly;

I
“Confidential Information” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 18.1 of this

Agreement;

“Disputing Parties” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 16.1 of this Agreement;

“Eligible Equirty Shareholders” shall mean Equity Shareholders of our Company on the Record

Date;

“Engagement Letter” shall mean the engagement letter or fee letter entered into by the
|

|
Company with the Lead Manager;

“Environmental Laws” shall have the meaning as ascribed to it in Clause 8.43 of this
Agreement;

|.
“Equity Shares” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Recital A of this Agreement;

“Financial Statements” shall mean the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Cumpanj‘ which includes its Subsidiaries, as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022, which

comprises of the consolidated balance March 31, 2022, the consolidated statement of

profit and loss, including other copipreh

iv ér}céfn the consolidated cash flow statement and
v 1 Uppal - =




the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information and un-audited consolidated financial results for the quarter and

nine-months ended on December 31, 2022;

“Governmental Authority” shall include the SEBI the RBI, the Stock Exchanges, any
Registrar of Companies, and any national, state, regional or local government or governmental,
regulatory, statutory, administrative, fiscal, taxation, judicial, or government-owned body,
department, commission, authority, court, arbitrator, tribunal, agency or entity, in India or

outside India;

“Group” shall mean the Company, its Subsidiaries, Associates (if any) and Joint Ventures (if

any) taken as a whole;

“Group Companies” shall mean such companies (other than Subsidiary/Subsidiaries) with
which there were related party transactions as per the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company, during the period for which financial information is disclosed in the Issue
Documents, as covered under the applicable accounting standards, and also other companies as

considered material by the board of the issuer;

“Intermediary™ / “Intermediaries” shall refer to the various intermediaries appointed for ﬂ'l;

purposes of the Issue;

STAS [S7 T
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“Issue Duculmnnts” shall mean the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Rights
Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, together with all amendments, corrigendum,

corrections, supplements or notices to investors, for use in connection with the Issue;

I
“Lead Manager” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Preamble to this Agreement;

|
“Lender Consents” shall mean the consents/NoCs, if required, to be obtained from the lenders
of the Company for the issuance and allotment of the Rights Securities.

|
“Material Adverse Effect” shall mean, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse
change, or any development reasonably likely to involve a prospective material adverse change

.
whether or not arising in the ordinary course of business (a) on the reputation, condition,
financial, legal,rbr otherwise, or in the assets (including properties), liabilities, revenues, business,
management, operations, prospects or results of operations of the Company, either individually
or taken as a whole (including without limitation any material loss or interference with its
business from klire, explosion, flood or other calamity, whether or not covered by insurance, or
from court or governmental action, order or decree, (b) on the ability of the Company to conduct
their husinessem and to own or lease their assets or properties in substantially the same manner in
which such businesses were previously conducted or such assets or properties were previously
owned or leased and (c) on the ability of the Company to execute or deliver this Agreement or
the Engagemen¥ Letter or the Registrar Agreement or the Banker to the Issue Agreement, or
perform iit.s nbfigaticns under, or to consummate the transactions contemplated by this

Agreement, the| Engagement Letters or istrar Agreement or the Banker to the [ssue
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Agreement, including the issuance, Allotment and delivery of the Rights Securities to the

successful Applicants.
“Media Agencies” shall mean as mentioned under Clause 11.

“Money Laundering Laws” shall have the meaning as ascribed to it in Clause 8.46 of this

Agreement;

“Parties”/ “Party” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Preamble to this Agreement;

“Record Date™ shall mean the designated date for the purpose of determining the Equity

Shareholders eligible to apply for Rights Securities, being February 28, 2023.

“Regulation 57 shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the recitals to this Agreement;
“Restricted Party” shall have th;e meaning given to such term in Clause 8.72 of this Agreement;
“Rights Entitlement” shall mean the right to acquire the Rights Securities, being offered vide

the Issue, by an Applicant, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI

Rights Issue Circular, in this case being 1 (one) Rights Equity Share alongwith 17 (seventeen)

Heg Mo.2138T
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“Rights Securities™ shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Recital A of this Agreement;

“Rights Entitlements Letter” shall mean an intimation to be sent by the Registrar to all existing
Eligible Equity Shareholders which will contain details of their Rights Entitlement based on their

shareholdings as on the Record Date.

“Sanctions” shall have the meaning given to such term in Clause 8.72 of this A greement;

“Sanctions Authorities” shall have the meaning given to such term in Clause 8.72 of this
Agrccn#:m;
“SEBI Rights Issue Circulars” Collectively, SEBI circular, bearing reference number
SEBVHO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, bearing reference number
SEBIJ’I-]DFCFD&SSEFICIR’PIZDEEF&E dated May 19, 2022 and any other circular issued by SEBI
in this regard.

|
“Subsidiaries™ shall mean subsidiaries of the Company as defined under the Companies Act,
2013 and the ap_j:licablﬂ accounting standard;

“TDS" shall mean tax deducted at source,

“US. Se:uritiefq Act” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the recitals to this

Agreement.




2. Interpretation

In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:

2.1,

2.2

2.3.

2.4.

1.5,

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9,

words denoting singular or plural number also include plural or singular number,
respectively;

heading and bold typeface are only for convenience and shall be ignored for the
purposes of interpretation;

the recitals hereto shall constitute an integral part of this Agreement;

references to persons shall include individuals, bodies corporate (wherever
incorporated), unincorporated associations and partnerships;

any phrase introduced by the terms “other”, “including”, “include” and “in
particular” or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not
limit the sense of the words preceding those terms;

the terms “herein”, “hereof™, “hereto”, “hereunder” and “hereby™ and their derivative
or similar words refer to this Agreement as a whole or specified Clauses of this
Agreement, as the case may be;

words of any gender are deemed to include those of the other gender;

references to Agreement or to any other agreement, deed or other instrument shall be
construed as a reference to such agreement, deed. or other instrument as the same

may from time to time be amended, varied or supplemented or any replacement or

novation thereof®
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2.10.  areference to a Clause, unless indicated to the contrary, is a reference to a Clause of
this Agreement;

2.11.  unless otherwise defined the reference to the word ‘days’ shall mean calendar days;

2.12. rei'erences to any legislation or law or to any provision thereof shall include
references to any such law as it may, after the date hereof, from time to time, be
amended. supplemented or re-enacted, and any reference to a statutory provision
shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that
pr}:!wisiun;

2.13. references to “knowledge”, “awareness™ or similar expressions of a person regarding
a matter shall mean the actual knowledge of such person after due diligence and
careful inquiries and investigations which would be expected or required from a
person of ordinary prudence, or if the context so requires, the actual knowledge of
such person’s directors, officers, partners, or trustees regarding such matter;

3. Payvments

3.1.  The fees and expenses payable to the Lead Manager for managing the Issue has been
mutually agreed upon as per the Engagement Letter entered into with the Lead
Manager.

4. Scopeof SerTir.-es

4.1.  The Lead Manager shall provide the services in relation to the Issue as agreed under

the Engagement Letter and/or as listed out under Annexure A of this Agreement.

42.  Forthe avoidance of doubt, Lead Manager shall not be responsible or liable for the




4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

The Lead Manager shall act as an independent party and shall conduct its duties only
in accordance with the terms of the Engagement Letter and this Agreement and any
duties arising out of the Engagement Letter and this Agreement shall be owed solely

to the Company.

The Company agrees that the Lead Manager shall be liable for only its own actions

and omissions in terms of this Agreement.

The Company acknowledges and agrees that the appointment of the Lead Manager
and the entry into this Agreement or any Engagement Letter by the Lead Manager is
not an agreement or commitment, express or implied, by the Lead Manager or any of
their Affiliates to underwrite, purchase or subscribe to any securities or otherwise

commit any capital or provide any financing to the Company.

5. Issue Terms

.1

S.2.

53

The Issue will be solely managed by the Lead Manager as per terms of this

Agreement. For terms of responsibilities of Lead Manager please refer Annexure B

The Company. in consultation with the Lead Manager, shall decide the terms of the

Issue including the opening and

'ﬂ.q% timing, pricing, application money,

method and structure of the |

The Company shall not, wnhq\\ th %‘fﬁ‘r'\‘aﬁj&n cpnsent of the Lead Manager, file

ErJ‘ir

the Issue Documents with SEWchmges or any other aulhnnty

whatsoever,

Hoe 13 of 89
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54.

5.6.

5.7.|

5.8.

All allocations / Allotments made pursuant to the Issue shall be in accordance with
the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and shall be
uﬁw.dertaken by the Company, in consultation with the Registrar, Lead Manager and

Designated Stock Exchange.

The Company undertakes that it will make applications to the Stock Exchanges for
listing and trading of the Rights Securities and shall obtain in-principle approvals
from the Stock Exchanges and designate one of the Stock Exchanges as the
Designated Stock Exchange. The Company undertakes that all the steps will be taken
for the completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of

|
tra'Hing of the Rights Securities at all the Stock Exchanges.

The Company has appointed a monitoring agency to monitor the utilization of the

NJE Proceeds, in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The Company has obtained authority for the Issue through a board resolution dated
Detember 26, 2022 and the Rights Issue Commitice pursuant to its resolutions dated
January 16, 2023, February 15, 2023 and February 22, 2023, respectively and no

I
other consent from the Board of Directors of the Company is required for the Issue.

The obligations of the Lead Manager, are conditional (inter alia) upon the following:

I
(a) The existence of market conditions before launch of the Issue, which in the sole

opinion of the Lead Manager, be satisfactory for the Issue, and the Company

Ved F‘r-'}éh Uppal
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continuing to remain in compliance with all representations, warranties, terms and
conditions of this Agreement and the Engagement Letters;

(b} in the sole opinion of the Lead Manager, absence of any Material Adverse Effect;

(c) The completion of business, financial and legal due diligence to the satisfaction of
the Lead Manager in order to enable the Lead Manager to file the due diligence
certificate with SEBI and as is customary in issuances of the kind contemplated
herein;

(d) Completion of all applicable regulatory requirements (including receipt of all
necessary approvals) as required in connection with the Issue by the Company to
the reasonable satisfaction of the Lead Manager;

(e) The benefit of a clear market to the Lead Manager prior to the Issue, and in
connection therewith, no equity offering will be undertaken by the Company
subsequent to the filing of the Letter of Offer, without prior consultation with and
written approval uflthe [.ead Manager, which shall not be unreasonably withheld;

(f) Disclosure in the Issue Documents to the satisfaction of the Lead Manager and
receipt of all certifications, undertakings, customary agreements, including,
without limitation, provisions such as representations and warranties, conditions as
to closing of the Issue, in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Lead Manager;

(g) Changes to the terms and conditions of the Issue from those set forth in the Letter

of Offer, being determined as satisfactory in the sole opinion of the Lead Manager,

T4
vﬁ*{?eguﬁ%thoﬁﬁes and the stock exchanges;

subject to approval from

Vci-“' ::1-'-"' E.h Ll.u
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|
‘I
(i} Confirmation by the management of the Company, prior to the filing of the Letter
of Offer with SEBI and the Stock Exchanges, that:
i. it has provided authentic, correct, complete and valid information, reports,
| statements,  declarations, undertakings, clarifications, documents,
certifications for incorporation in the Letter of Offer, Application From,
Rights Entitlement Letter and the Abridged Letter of Offer and
ii. the Letter of Offer is complete in all material respects and does not include
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact that
would intend to mislead any potential investor;
(i) fq.ppmvai of the relevant internal committees of the Lead Manager;
(k) heccipt of final listing and trading approval for the Rights Securities; and
(1) any other opinions, certifications, letters and documents that are reasonably
requested by the Lead Manager.
|
59.  The Company declares and undertakes that intimations to all the bankers, lenders and
institutions and appropriate persons will be given or the consent/s, wherever
applicable, have been obtained or will be obtained including in relation to any

in_llf'mnatinn disclosed in the Issue Documents. The Company also declares and

represents that, wherever required, it has obtained all regulatory approvals that may

be required for the Issue.

5.10. The Company shall take all such steps as are necessary, to ensure the completion of
Allotment, dispatch of refund lntm@fﬁﬂlﬂ unblu::k:ng of bank accounts of th-} o
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respective Applicants, as applicable, as per the modes described in the Letter of
Offer, in any case, no later than the time limit stipulated under the Applicable Laws
and, in the event of failure to do so, pay interest to the Applicants as required under

Applicable Law or under any direction or order of any Governmental Authority.

5.11. Until the Closing Date, the Company will keep the Lead Manager formally informed
of details of all legal proceedings and shall not resort to any legal proceedings in
respect of any matter having a bearing on the Issue, except in consultation with the

Lead Manager.

5.12. The Company shall not access the money raised pursuant to the Issue until the listing
and trading approval in respect to the Issue has been received.

6. Supplying of Information and Documents

6.1.  The Company undertakes and declares that for the purposes of the Issue it shall
disclose to the Lead Manager all relevant, necessary, material information relating to
their business, operations, financial condition and financial results, all pending
litigation, any further litigation, including without limitation any enquiry,
investigation, show cause notice, claims, consent terms, settlement application,
complaints filed by or before any regulatory, government, quasi-judicial authority,

tribunal or any arbitration, in relation to the Company and its Subsidiaries, arising

until the listing of the Rig
SEBI ICDR Regulation an&”rﬁmﬁifmm

Advo ate
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6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

R e SRR

documents, papers and information relating to such litigation to enable the Lead
Manager to corroborate the information and statements included in the Issue

Documents.

The Company undertakes, and shall cause its Directors, Subsidiaries, its Promoter,
Promoter Group, employees, experts, auditors, advisors, intermediaries and others to
promptly furnish all requisite documents, as may be required or requested by the
Léad Manager or its Affiliates. All information, documents, certificates, reports and
particulars in relation to the Issue shall be pmvid-e:d on the virtual data room or
through e-mails for the purposes of conducting due diligence in relation to the
Company and that such information, documents, certificates, reports and particulars

| be retained by the Lead Manager for the purpose of their diligence, subject to

Clause 18 of this Agreement.

The Company undertakes to furnish such relevant information and particulars
I

rv:ﬁa:ding the Issue, as may be required by the Lead Manager, to enable the Lead

Manager to cause filing of such reports, documents and certificates in time as may be

required by the Stock Exchanges and/or regulatory bodies.

The Company agrees that the Lead Manager shall at all times and as it may deem
appropriate, have access to the Directors of the Company and other key personnel

and the external advisors thereof. The Company shall extend all necessary facilities

Ofadierrelevant 1o the Issue with its legal
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6.5.

advisors, auditors, bankers, consultants or any other organization, and also with any
other Intermediaries including the Registrar to the Issue, who may be associated with

the Issue in any capacity whatsoever.

The Company undt}-takes, and shall cause, its respective directors, employees,
Promoter, Promoter Group, experts, auditors, advisors, intermediaries and others to
promptly furnish all information, documents, certificates, reports and particulars in
relation to the Issue (at any time whether or not the Issue is completed) as may be
required or requested by the Lead Manager or its Affiliates to (i) enable it to comply
with any Applicable Law, including the filing, in a timely manner, of such
documents, certificates, reports and particulars, including any post-lssue documents,
certificates (including any due diligence certificate), reports or other information as
may be required by the SEBI, the Stock Exchanges, the Registrar of Companies and
any other Governmental Authority in respect of the Issue, (ii) enable it to comply
with any request or.demand from any Governmental Authority, (iii) enable it to
prepare, investigate or defend in any proceedings, action, claim or suit, or (iv)
otherwise enable it to review the correctness and/or adequacy of the statements made
in the Issue Documents and shall extend full cooperation to the Lead Manager in

connection with the foregoing. The Lead Manager shall have the right to withhold

submission of the Issue Docum the information requested by the Lead

Rp
Manager is not made av 13&!‘-‘%&3
Advdcate

Promoter, Promoter Group,!

any or its Q_ircctors, employees,
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auditorsy advisors and intermediaries,
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6.6.

6.7.

The Company agrees to provide in such form and manner as may be prescribed by
the Lead Manager all contracts, information, documents, certificates, reports and
particulars for any due diligence exercise which may need to be conducted in relation
ta the Issue pursuant to any observations made, or directions issued, by SEBI or any
court, tribunal or any Governmental Authority or if specifically required or requested
by SEBL. any court, tribunal or Governmental Authority or as may be requested by
the Lead Manager prior to any inspection by any regulatory authority. It is hereby
clarified that in the event of an inspection by any regulatory authority against the
L:}_lad Manager or its affiliates or the legal advisors, the non-confidential parts of the
information/ documents which were inspected at Company's premises for which no
copies were retained by the Lead Manager and the legal counsels owing to
confidentiality reasons, be provided to the Lead Manager and/or the legal advisors

for submission to the concerned regulatory authority;

The Company declares that any information made available to the Lead Manager or
any statement made in the Issue Documents will be complete in all respects and will
be true and correct and that under no circumstances will it give any information or
statTmant which is likely to mislead in the context in which it is made to the
concerned Governmental Authorities and/or investors, The Company further declares
that it will disclose all information as required under the Applicable Law, to enable

the ihw:smrs to make a well-informed decision as to an investment in the Issue.

TAQx
/rf"‘ i \ !
Vi ”hﬁjw_!r._.__.il \

Reg No.21387 J

( &%Mmd\?’“
B or S

z-'\l'd




6.8.

6.9.

6.10.

The Company shall be solely responsible for the authenticity, correctness, validity
and reasonableness of the information, reports, statements, declarations,
undertakings, clarifications, documents, certification and related matters
authenticated by its Directors, Promoters, statutory officers and every person of the
Company for incorporating in the [ssue Documents. The Lead Manager shall in no
way be liable for the same, except to the extent of the information provided by the
Lead Manager, in writing, expressly for inclusion in the Issue Documents, which

consists of only their name, logo, contact details and SEBI registration numbers,

The Company accepts full responsibility for consequences, if any, for making a false
statement, providing misleading information or withholding or concealing material
facts, which have a bearing on the Issue. The Lead Manager shall have the right to
withhold submission of the Letter of Offer, to the Stock Exchanges and SEBI, in case
any of the information called for by it which is required under Applicable Law or

under the terms of this Agreement, is not made available by the Company.

The Company undertakes to furnish audited financials and any other relevant
documents, papers, undertakings, certificates and supporting information. which in
the opinion of the L.ead Manager is necessary and relevant under Applicable Law, to

enable the Lead Manager to certi Ihe information given and the statements
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6.11.

6.12.

The Company agrees to, for the period up to and including, the Closing Date, (i)
immediately notify the Lead Manager and at the request of the Lead Manager,
immediately notify SEBI, the Stock Exchanges or any other regulatory or
supervisory authority, as applicable, and the investors (a) upon discovery of any
information provided in accordance herewith which is inaccurate, untrue, incomplete,
n:‘g misleading or of any failure to provide any material information; (b) of
developments which would result in the Issue Documents containing an untrue
statement of a material fact or omitting to state a material fact necessary in order to
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they are
made, not misleading; (c) of any developments in relation to any other information
pr&vided by the Company, including if the information has been improperly provided
or that its provision or use by the Lead Manager or its advisers would be
unauthorised or in breach of any law, duty or obligation, and (d) of any developments
which may impact continuous listing and/or statutory and/or regulatory compliances
in fli:latinn to the Rights Securities; and (ii) disclose all information that may have an
impact on the judgment of SEBI, the Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad, the Stock

Exchanges or any other regulatory or supervisory authority and/or the investment

decision of the investor,

’I‘hc" Company agrees to (for the period up to and including the Closing Date)
immediately notify the Lead Manager and at the request of the Lead Manager,
immediately notify SEBI, the Stock Exchanges or any other regulatory or

supervisory authority, as appli

@fﬁi&pﬂ'm’es{nm of any material developments
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6.13.

6.14.

in the operations or business of the Company, its Subsidiaries, which may have an
adverse effect on the Issue or the disclosures made in connection therewith, including
but not limited to statutory and/or regulatory compliances in connection with the
Issue and/or the Rights Securities, provided that the Company shall decide what is
‘material” on a case to case basis, as required under applicable laws afler due

consultation with the Lead Manager.

The Company shall k.eep the Lead Manager informed if it encounters any difficulties
due to dislocation or disruption of communication systems or any other material
adverse circumnstances which are likely to prevent or which have prevented the
Company from complying with its obligations, whether statutory or contractual, in
respect of any matter pertaining to the Issue. The Company shall, and accepts full
responsibility to, update the information provided to the Lead Manager and to duly
and promptly communicate to the Lead Manager of any material change in the

information already provided.

The Company agrees to inform the Lead Manager of any material development in
respect of the Company, or its Subsidiaries that could have an impact on the financial
condition, operations and/or profi jblh&’ {.‘rf the Company (on a consolidated basis).

on an immediate basis until c%me 'I'.S EC'I.IIﬂiﬁS pursuant to the Issue, are
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6.15.

6.16.

6.17.

T‘w Company acknowledges and agrees that all relevant and necessary information,
chuments and statements required for any purpose ;.‘elatad to the Issue and the Issue
Documents will be signed / authenticated by authorised signatories, if requested by
the Lead Manager and that the Lead Manager shall be entitled to assume without
inHie:pendem verification that such signatory, is duly authorized by the Company, to

execute such documents and statements and that the Company shall be bound by

such obligations.

F I.J__L‘Lhel', until the Closing Date, the Company undertakes to promptly notify the Lead
Manager of any information (including to the extent that the Company becomes
aware of any pledge of Equity Shares by its Promoter, Promoter Group or Directors),
corporate event or any decision whatsoever, which would or is likely to have a
malerial bearing on the Issue or on the ability of the investor(s) or prospective

investor(s) to take an investment decision to participate in the Issue,

The Company on its behalf undertakes to sign and cause each of the directors of the
Company (including the Chief Financial Officer), to sign the Letter of Offer to be
filed the Stock Exchanges and SEBI and such signature would be construed by the
Company and the Lead Manager and any statutory authority to mean that the
Company agrees that the Letter of Offer presents, a true and correct description of

the Group, Directors of the Company, and the Rights Securities bemg issued
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6.18. The Company agrees that the obligations of the Lead Manager under this Agreement

shall be subject to the receipt by the Lead Manager of the following document:

6.18.1. On the date of filing of the Letter of Offer and on the day of the allotment of the
Rights Securities offered and subscribed in the Issue, a customary opinion of Rajani
Associates., Legal Advisor to the Issue in form and substance satisfactory to the Lead

Manager.

6.19. The Company acknowledges that it is not relying on the advice of the Lead Manager
for tax, legal or accounting matters, it is seeking and will rely on the advice of its
own professionals and advisors for such matters and it will make an independent
analysis and decision regarding the Issue based upon such advice. If the Company
requests the Lead Manager to deliver documents or information relating to the Issue
via electronic transmissions or delivery of such documents or any information is
required by Applicable Law to be made via electronic transmissions, the Company
acknowledges and agrees that the privacy or integrity of electronic transmissions
cannot be guaranteed. To the extent that any document or information relating to the
Issue is transmitted electronically by the Lead Manager, the Company hereby
releases & also agrees to indemnify the Lead Manager from any loss or liability that
may be incurred under the Applicable Law whether in contract, tort or otherwise, in

respect of any error or omisgion arisin fméﬁ
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7.1, The Company will extend such facilities as may be called for by the Lead Manager to enable its
representatives and advisors to visit the offices of the Company and its Subsidiaries of the
Cdi?mpan},r and its Subsidiaries or such other place(s) to ascertain for themselves of the true
state of affairs of the Company including the status and functioning of the Company and its
Subsidiaries and other facts relevant to the Issue and for the purposes of conducting due
diligence in relation to the Company and its Subsidiaries. If, in the opinion of the Lead
Manager, the verification of any of the aforesaid matters requires hiring of services of
technical, legal or other experts in the specialized fields, the Company shall in consultation
with the Lead Manager appoint an independent expert for the same and provide access to
such independent expert to all relevant and material facts contained in the records of the
Company and its Subsidiaries. The expenses incurred in relation to any comfort
letter/report/opinion and/or documents of similar nature obtained from any such person
quiciﬁed in this Clanse 7 shall be borne by the Company. For the avoidance of doubt, the
Legd Manager will bear expenses which have been agreed to be borne by it under its
En!éagemnt Letter.

7.2. The Company agrees that the Lead Manager shall, at all reasonable times, and as it deem
appropriate, subject to reasonable notice, have access to the directors and key personnel of
the Company, promoter and promoter group and external advisors in connection with matters
related to the Issue. Further, the Company shall procure any information that the Lead
Manager may reasonably request under this Clause in as timely a manner as reasonably

practicable

8. Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Undertakings of the Company

The Company represents, warrants, cove

fﬁﬂ%&s and agrees with the Lead Manager

aymiﬁ}\ré:cq@m&memcnt of trading of the Rights
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Securities on the Stock Exchanges, including the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing

Date, the following;

8.1.

8.2,

8.3

The Company and each of the Company Entities have been duly incorporated and are
validly existing under the Applicable Laws and no steps have been taken for winding
up, liquidation or receivership of the Company Entities under the Applicable Laws
and each of them has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and
operate their properties and to conduct their business as described (and as will be
described) in the Issue Documents. Except as disclosed in the Issue Documents, the

Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associates.

The Company has identified Promoter and Promoter Group (as defined under the
SEBI ICDR Regulations) in Annexure C and there are no other promoters and
promoter group of the Company, except as disclosed in the Issue Documents. The
companies disclosed as Group Companies in the Issue Documents and this
Agreement are the only group companies of the Company as defined in SEBI ICDR

Regulations.

The Company is in compliance with applicable fast track eligibility conditions

prescribed under Part IX of Chapigy T EBI ICDR Regulations.

;7.
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8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

The terms of the Right Equity Shares are not in violation and will not be in violation
ﬂi.{ Applicable Law including the provisions of the Companies Act, the foreign
investment regulations in India, FEMA and the rules and regulations thereunder,
|

The Company has the corporate power and authority to undertake the Issue and issue
the Rights Securities and there are no restrictions or authorizations required under the
Aﬁﬁplicahle Law or the Company’s constitutional documents, agreements or
instruments binding on the Company, on issuance of the Rights Securities pursuant

to the Issue.

The execution of the Issue Documents, the Registrar Agreement, the Monitoring
Agency Agreement, this Agreement, the Banker to the Issue Agreement and the
Engagement Letter and all documents related to the Issue, has been duly authorised,
and this Agreement, the Banker to the Issue Agreement and the Engagement Letter,
the Letter of Offer and all documents and agreements related to the Issue have been
or will be duly authorized, executed and de]iverec:;l, and each is, or will be upon
execution, a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against
the Company in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be
limited by (i) applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, re-organisation, moratorium or

other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors™ rights generally, and (ii)

general principles of equity.




8.7.

8.9.

The Rights Sccuritie;v, proposed to be issued pursuant to the Issue has been duly
authorized and will be validly issued in compliance with Applicable Laws and will
be free and clear from any Encumbrances, existing or future nor shall the Rights
Securities be subject to any restrictions on transfer, including, without limitation, any
lock-up, standstill or other similar agreements or arrangements and shall be issued in
conformity with the Issue Documents. The Company further declares that the Rights
Equity Shares, once allotted and Warrants, as and when converted into Equity Shares

shall rank pari-passu with the existing Equity Shares of the Company.

The Rights Securities conform as to legal matters 1o the description thereof contained

in the Issue Documents under the section titled *Terms of the Issue”.

The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of its obligations under,
this Agreement, or any other agreements entered into by the Company in relation to
the Issue or the Engagement Letters and the Issue Documents shall not (i) conflict
with, contravene or result in a breach or violation of, or imposition of any pre-
emptive right, lien, mortgage, charge, pledge, security interest, defects, claim, trust or
any other encumbrance or transfer restriction, both present and future
(“Encumbrances™) on any property or assets of the Company; (ii) contravene any

provision of Applicable Law or the constitutional documents of the Company; (iii)
ORI
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8.10.

8.11.

a breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any order, judgment, decree,
or ruling of any court, arbitrator or governmental authority applicable to the
Cj‘l}mpany; and (v) violate any provision of any statute, law or other rule or regulation
ui:!’ any governmental authority applicable to the Company. No consent, approval,
authorization or order of, or qualification with, any Governmental Authority is
required for the performance by the Company of its obligations under this
A&'reement, the Banker to the Issue Agreement, the Registrar Agreement the
Engagement Letter or the Issue Documents.
|

The Company hereby confirms, represents and declares that as of the date of the
Letter of Offer, it has complied with or shall comply with all the statutory formalities
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder. the SEBI ICDR
Repulations, and applicable instructions, rules, regulations and other relevant
statutes, including the SEBI Rights lIssue Circulars, to enable the Company to
un(#mke the Issue, and the Company confirms, represents and declares that it has
complied with (i) all Applicable Law in relation to the respective business and
operations of the Company, (except where a non-compliance would not, either singly

or :r1 aggregate, result in a Material Adverse Effect), and (ii) all Applicable Laws to

the lssue.

Neither the Company, nor its Directors, Promoter or Promoter Group are or have in
the past been debarred or prohibited from accessing the capital markets or from

buying, selling, or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by the
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8.12.

8.13.

8.14.

SEBI or any securities market regulator in any other jurisdiction or any other

authority/court.

The companies with which the Promoter or Directors of the Company are associated

as promoters or directors, have not been debarred from accessing the capital markets

under any order or direction passed by SEBL

The Company, is in énmpliance with the Companies (Significant Beneficial Owner)

Rules, 2018, as amended.

The Issue Documents have been prepared in accordance with customary disclosure
standards for a rights issue under Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.: (A) contains and shall contain information that is and shall be true, fair,
complete and adequate to enable the investors to make a well-informed decision with
respect to an investment in the Issue; and (B) does not and shall not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order
to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they are
made, not misleading. The opinions and intentions expressed in the Issuer
Documents are honestly held, have been reached after considering all relevant
circumstances and will be bas

enquiries have been made b {Pg:gmm ertain the facts and to verify the

in the Issue Documents. %g?\
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8.15.

8.16.

8.17.

All of the issued, subscribed, paid up and outstanding share capital of the Company,
has been duly authorized and validly issued in compliance with Applicable Law, is

fully paid-up and conforms as to legal matters to the description contained in the

Issue Documents.

|
Except for the outstanding employee stock options disclosed in the Issue Documents,
there are no outstanding securities convertible into or exchangeable for, or warrants,
rights or options, or agreements to grant warrants, rights or options, to purchase or to
subscribe for, or obligations or commitments of the Company to create, issue, sell or
nlﬁerwisc dispose of, any securities (or any such shares, warrants, rights, options or

obligations) of the Company,

As on the date of this agreement, Share India Employee Stock Option Scheme 2022
and Share India Employee Stock Option Scheme — Il (collectively, "ESOP
SeLemes“) is in force. The Company confirms that (i) as on the date of adoption of
and the grant of stock options pursuant to such ESOP Schemes, the same were
compliant with Applicable Law, including the Companies Act 2013, as amended or
Companies Act, 1956, as amended, as then applicable, and the Guidance Note on
Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the ICAI and (ii) as on
the date of each of the Issue Documents, is and shall be compliant with the

Applicable Law at all times, including with respect to the Companies Act, the

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit)
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8.18.

8.19.

8.20.

8.21.

Regulations, 2014 as amended (“SEBI SBEB Regulations™) and the Guidance Note

on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the ICAL;

Except as mentioned in the letter of offer wherein it is shown that 20.77% (held by
the Promoter and Promoter Group) of the paid-up share capital of the Company is
under pledge, the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and Promoter Group are free

and clear of any Encumbrances.

The Company has obtained and shall obtain all necessary approvals and consents in
connection with the Issue, which may be required under the Applicable Law and/or
under contractual arrangements by which it or its Subsidiaries may be bound, and has
complied with, and shall comply with, the terms and conditions of such approvals,

and all Applicable Law in relation to the Issue and any matter incidental thereto.

No approvals of any governmental, administrative or regulatory authorities are
required in India (including any foreign exchange or foreign currency approvals) in
order for the Company to pay dividends declared by the Company to the holders of

Equity Shares.

The Company shall credit the Rights Entitlement of each sharcholder in a designated




8.22.

8.23.

8.24.

sipspensc account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (iv)
t[l'le Equity Shares are held in the account of IEPF authority; or (v) the demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder are frozen or (vi) details of demat
agcount of the Eligible Equity Shareholders which are unavailable with the Company
of with the Registrar as on the Record Date; or (vii) the Equity Shares are held in
pﬁ}rsical form by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date and who
have not provided the details of their respective demat account details to the
Company and/or the Registrar; or {viii) instances where the crediting of Rights
Entitlements into the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders
could not take place for any other reasons, not within the control of the Company
anﬁf{}r the Registrar, including those cases where emails sent to the Eligible Equity

Shareholders could not be delivered, shall intimate or cause an intimation to be sent

to gLur.:h shareholders.

The Company has set up an online dedicated investor helpline and links to
“frequently asked questions’ on its website and the website of the Registrar to guide
Applicants in gaining familiarity with the Application process and to resolve
difficulties faced by Applicants and the Company shall be responsible along with the

Registrar to suitably address any investor complaints,

In this regard, the Company further represents and undertakes to ensure that:
The audited consolidated financial statements of our Company and our Subsidiaries

for the vear ended March 3 T comprises the balance sheet as at March
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31, 2022, the statement of profit and loss, including other comprehensive income, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (the “Audited Financial Statements™) included in the Letter of Offer
present fairly the financial position of the Company (on a consolidated basis) at the
dates indicated and the statement of operations, share capital and cash flows of the
Company for the periods specified; such Audited Financial Statements have been
prepared in conformity with Ind AS and applicable law, applied on a consistent basis
throughout the relevant periods. The supporting schedules, if any. included (and
which will be included) in the Letter of Offer present fairly in accordance with Ind
AS and applicable laws the information required to be stated therein. Statutory
Auditors who audited such financial statements are independent chartered
accountants within the rules of the code of professional ethics of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). The Company confirms that its statutory
auditors, namely, M/s SVP & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chartered
Accountants, have subjected themselves to the peer review process of the ICAI and
that they hold a valid certificate issued by the ‘Peer Review Board' of the ICAL
which is valid as on date; and the summary financial data of the Company contained

in the Issue Documents, have been derived from such financial statements and fairly

present the information included therein on the basis stated therein.




8.26,

accordance with management's general and specific authorisations; (ii) transactions
are recorded as necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements in
cilmfnnnity with Ind AS, and to maintain accountability for its assets; (iii) access to
assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries is permitted only in accordance with
management's general or specific authorisations and (iv) the recorded assets of the
C::nmpany and its Subsidiaries are compared 1o existing assets at periodic intervals of
time, and appropriate action is taken with respect 16 any differences (v) each of the
Company and its Subsidiaries has made and kept books, records and accounts which,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
HJ! assets and provide a sufficient basis for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements in accordance with Indian AS, and (vi) the Company and its Subsidiaries’
cutrent management information and accounting control system have been in
operation for at least 12 months during which the Company and its Subsidiaries have
not experienced any material difficulties with regard to (i) to (v) above. Since the end
of the Company’s most recent audited fiscal year, there has been (1) no material
weakness in the Company’s and Subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting
[wi‘nether or not remediated) and (2) no change in 'Ithe Company’s and Subsidiaries
internal control over financial reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s and Subsidiaries internal control over

financial reporting.

Since the respective dates as of which information is given for the preparation of the

"_,.,.-o-' =7 =~ e
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8.27.

8.28.

Adverse Effect; (ii) except as disclosed in the Issue Documents, any transaction
which is material to the Company, except for transactions entered into in the ordinary
course of business, (iii) any liabilities or obligations, direct or contingent, incurred by
the Company, which would have a Material Adverse Effect, (iv)any changes in the
share capital of the Company, except as disclosed in the Issue Documents or (v) any
acquisition or disposal of or agreement to acquire or dispose of any material asset,
(vi) any increase in outstanding indebtedness of the Group which are material to the
Company, or (vi) except as disclosed in the Issue Documents, any dividend or
distribution of any kind declared, paid or made on any equity shares of the Company,

nor is there any agreement by the Company to buyback the Rights Securities.

The Company has obtained written consent or approval where required, for the use of
information, procured from third parties and the public domain and included in the
Issue Documents and such information is based on or derived from sources that the
Company believes to be reliable and accurate and such information has been, or shall
be, accurately reproduced in the Issue Documents. The Company is not in breach of
any agreement or c;ingat:ion with respect to any third party’'s confidential or

proprietary information

The Company is adequately insured (to the extent possible) by insurers of recognized

financial standing against SW isks and in such amounts as are prudent
Q P
and customary in the busir ﬁ}ﬁlﬂ%{fﬂglﬂt are engaged. All such insurances

insuring the Company and[ theig businesses, ass¢ts, employees, officers are in full
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8.29.

force and effect, except where the failure to maintain such insurance will not result in
a Material Adverse Effect. The Company has no reason to believe that it shall not be
able to (A) renew its existing insurance coverage as and when such coverage expires
of (B) obtain comparable coverage from similar institutions as may be necessary or
appropriate to conduet its business as now conducted and at a cost that would not
result in a Material Adverse Effect. The Company has not been denied any insurance
coverage which it has sought or for which it has applied. The Company is in
compliance with the terms and conditions of such policies and instruments of
im::purance; there are no material claims by the Company under any such policy or
instrument of insurance which are pending or which any insurance company is

denying liability or defending under a reservation of rights clause.

Except as would not have a Material Adverse Effect, the Company is not in default in
'r.heE performance or observance of any obligation, agreement, covenant or condition
cnlf';tained in any contract, indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan or credit
agreement, note or other agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or
by which it is bound or to which its properties or assets are subject. There has been
no huﬁce or communication, written or otherwise, issued by any lender or third party
to the Company with respect to any default or violation of or acceleration of
repayment or seeking enforcement of any security interest with respect to any
indenture, mortgage, loan or credit agreement, or any other agreement or instrument

to which the Company is a party or by which the Company is bound or to which the

properties or assets of the Com Mﬂﬂ%\




8.30.

8.31.

8.32.

No labour problem, dispute, slowdown, work stoppage or disturbance involving the
employees of the Company, which could result in a Material Adverse Effect, exists
or, to the knowledge of the Company, is imminent or threatened, and the Company is
not aware of any existing or imminent labour disturbance by its employees, principal
suppliers, manufacturers, customers or contractors or of the Company, which could
result in a Material Adverse Effect. To the best knowledge of the Company, no
director or key managerial personnel of the Company named in the Issue Documents
plans to terminate their position or employment with the relevant entity. There are no
amounts owing or promised to any present or former directors or key managerial
personnel of the Company or the Subsidiaries, other than remuneration accrued or for

reimbursement for business expenses.

There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or brought by any
court or governmental agency or body, domestic or foreign, or any arbitration
proceeding pending or, to the knowledge of the Company and its Subsidiaries,
threatened against or affecting the Company and its Subsidiaries or any of their
respective properties and assets, which individually or in the aggregate might result

in a Material Adverse Effect.

Except as disclosed in the Issue Documents: (i) there are no oulstanding litigations

involving the Company and the S_fu%v.tg:mﬁ;apmdered material in accordance with
the Company's “Policy for Dfétérrm:i ‘Iif,;ly!#t
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8.33.

8.34.

8.35.

of the materiality threshold adopted for the purposes of the Issue and disclosed in the
Ia_r-ue Documents; (ii) there are no outstanding litigation involving (a) issues of moral
mlh)imdr: or criminal liability on the part of the Company and/or the Subsidiaries, (b)
material violations of statutory regulations by the Company and/or the Subsidiaries,
and (c) economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against the

Company and/or the Subsidiaries.

Except as disclosed in the Issue Documents, there is no pending show-cause notice
issued or threatened to be issued against the Company or its Subsidiaries by SEBI,
RBI, Stock Exchanges or any other regulatory authority in respect of any alleged

violation of Applicable Laws.

The Issue Document discloses along with its potential adverse impact the following
(if any): (i) all Show Cause Notices issued by SEBI against the Company or its

ymoter, Directors and Group Companies in an aldjudir:atinrn proceeding; and (ii)
prosecution proceedings initiated by SEBI. Further, there are no Show Cause Notices
except in case of pending adjudication matters which have been issued to the

Company or its Promoter, Directors and Group Companies.

The Company, the Promoter, Promoter Group and Directors of the Company have

not ever scttled any matters under any framework of SEBI (Settlement Proceedings)

Regulations, 2018 as amended.




8.36.

8.37.

8.38.

All of the outstanding Equity Shares of the Company, except for the Rights

Securities, are listed and admitted for trading on the BSE and the NSE.

All announcements made by the Company or any information supplied or disclosed
in writing or orally or electronically or in any other form by the Company including,
without limitation, the answers and documents provided at due diligence calls (and
any new or additional information serving to update or amend such information
supplied or disclosed by the Company or on its behalf to the Lead Manager or the
legal and other professional advisers to the Lead Manager). and all publicly available
information and records of the Company is and was, when supplied or published, and
remains true and accurate in all material respects and not misleading in any material

respect.

Each consent, order, approval and authorisation of, and registration, filing and
declaration with, any court, regulatory authority, governmental agency or Stock
Exchanges or any other person required in connection with the execution, delivery or
performance by the Company of this Agreement, the Banker to the Issue Agreement,
the Registrar Agreement, the Letter of Offer and all documents related thereto, in

connection with the conduct and consummation of the Issue and the Transactions,

has been received, dnn}/m'
{ Vegp,_,

may be, will be received, done §f‘db
~ Reg . cate
time such consent, ﬂrd%, g;g%ﬂ'ﬁl;a;uthn sation, registration, filing and declaration
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are in full force and effect or, as the case

and be in full force and effect prior to the



8.39.

8.40.

8.41.

There has not occurred any Material Adverse Effect since April 01, 2022 until the
diilte of the Issue Documents. All material changes, commitments and developments
after the date of the latest balance sheet and its impact on the prospects and
performance of the Company and its Subsidiaries has been disclosed in the Issue
Documents.
'|

The Company has good, legal, valid and marketable title to all real property owned
by it, free and clear of all mortgages, pledges, liens, security interests, claims,
restrictions or encumbrances of any kind except such as do not, singly or in the
aggregate, result in a Material Adverse Effect and do not interfere with the use made
and proposed to be made of such property by the Company; and all of the leases
(which expression includes any letting, any under-lease or sublease (howsoever
remote) and any tenancy or license to occupy in relation to the business of the
Company are in full force and effect except where the expiry of such leases, tenancy
or !;'Iiccnse to occupy results in a Material Adverse Effect . the Company have not
received any notice of any claim of any sort that has been asserted by anyone adverse
to the rights of the Company, as the case may be, to the continued possession under

any of the leases or subleases, except where the receipt of any notice of claim results

in & Material Adverse Effect.

All documents that are material to the current or proposed use of the real properties

of the Company are in full force ct, and except as would not have a Material,
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8.42.

8.43,

Adverse Effect, no notice has been received of any existing or, to the best knowledge
of the Company, threatened claim, trespass, dispute or let to the title or entitlement,
or to the right to legally sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the properties, nor
affecting the rights of the Company to the continued entitlement. peaceful possession
and development related to the properties except those that do not, singly or in the

aggregate have a Material Adverse Effect.

The Company has filed all necessary central and state income and goods and services
tax returns or have properly requested extensions thereof except where the failure to
do so would not have a Material Adverse Effect and have paid all taxes required to
be paid by it and, if due and payable, any related or similar assessment, fine or
penalty levied against it except as may be being contested in good faith and by
appropriate proceedings or as would not have a Material Adverse Effect. There are
no tax actions, liens, audits or investigations pending or, to the best knowledge of the
Company after due inquir}'. threatened against the Company or upon any of their

respective properties or assets which will result in a Material Adverse Effect.

(A) the Company is not in violation of applicable statutes, laws, rules, regulations,

ordinances, codes, policies or rules of civil or common law or any judicial or
; DIAS . ..

administrative interpretation the nl‘mcludm judmal or administrative order,

"Jrﬂ‘d -D'" thr .-'I.-dl I'-\.
latingito, pellution ot protection of human health or
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the environment (including, %hﬂ.ﬂi hhg‘ntﬂtl@ ambient air. surface water,
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groundwater, land surface or swmding, without limitation, laws
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8.44.

and regulations relating to the release or threatened release of chemicals, pollutants,
contaminants, wastes, toxic substances or hazardous substances, (collectively,
“Environmental Laws”). (B) the Company has all permits, authorizations and
approvals required under any applicable Environmental Laws and are in compliance
wnh their requirements, (C) there are no pending or threatened administrative,
regulatory or judicial actions, suits, demands, demand letters, claims, liens, notices of
nﬁn{umpliance or violation, investigation or proceedings relating to any
Environmental Law against the Company, (D) there are no events or circumstances
or costs that would reasonably be expected to form the basis of an order for clean-up
or remediation, or an action, suit or proceeding by any private party or governmental
body or agency, against or affecting the Company relating to Environmental Laws,
except where the failure to comply with regard to (A) to (D) (inclusive) above, would

nu!i have a Material Adverse Effect.

There are no contracts or documents that would be required to be described in the
Issue Documents under any Applicable Law that have not been so described. The
Cth‘upany has full power, authority and legal right fo enter into, execute, adopt,
assume, issue, deliver and perform their obligations under all contracts and
agreements material to the business of the Company (the "Material Contracts") and
such obligations constitute valid, legal and binding obligations enforceable against
cach of them in accordance with the terms of each Material Contract. Each Material

Contract is in full force and effect and none of the parties to any of the Material

Contracts is in breach or default i 7! ormance or observance of any of the terms
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or provisions of such Material Contracts which would result in a Material adverse
Effect. The Company has not sent or received any communication regarding
termination of, or intention not to renew, any of the Material Contracts, and no such
termination or nonrenewal has been threatened by the Company or any other party to
any Material Contract except where such termination would result in a Material

Adverse Effect.

8.45. The statements in the Issue Documents under the heading “Outstanding Litigation
and Matenial Developments™ in so far as such statements constitute summaries of
legal matters, documents or proceedings referred to therein, truly and fairly present
the information called for with respect to such legal matters, documents and
proceedings and truly and fairly summarise the maiters referred to therein in all

material respects.

8.46. The operations of the Company and the Subsidiaries and to the knowledge of the
Company, its Affiliates are and have been conducted at all times in compliance with
applicable financial record keeping and reporting requirements and money
laundering statutes and the rules and regulations thereunder and any related or similar

rules, regulations or guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by any

governmental agency in all juri -*a }.il h. ich they operate (collectively, the

&

“Money Laundering Laws™) andae Ecﬁﬁbéﬁﬁ?ﬁr roceeding by or before any court
Advocate

or governmental agency, auth ?W%ﬁ&hiﬂamr involving the Company.
GB.Nagar o=
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8.47.

the Money Laundering Laws is pending or, to the best knowledge of the Company,
threatened. None of the Company, and the Subsidiaries and to the knowledge of the
Company, its Affiliates (a) has taken or will take, directly or indirectly, any action
that contravenes or violates any Applicable Laws or the laws of any jurisdiction in
which they operate regarding the provision of assistance to terrorist activities and
money laundering: or (b) has provided or will provide, directly or indirecily,
financial or other services to any person subject to such laws. The Company Entities
have instituted and maintained and will continue to maintain policies and procedures
designed to promote and achieve compliance with the Money Laundering Laws and
with the representation and warranty contained herein.

Neither the Company, nor the Subsidiaries, nor any of their directors or officers nor,
to the Company's knowledge, its Affiliates, any agent or representative or employee
oﬂ! the Company (other than the Lead Manager and its Affiliates, as to whom the
Company makes no representation), has taken or will take any action (a) that would
result in a violation by such persons of any offence under any provision of the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, or regulation implementing the
OECD Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Public Officials in International
Bdginess Transactions, in each case as applicable to it (collectively “Anti-Corruption
Laws™): (b) in furtherance of an offer, payment, promise to pay, or authorization or
approval of the payment or giving of money, property, gifis or anything else of value,
directly or indirectly, to any “government official” (including any officer or

employee of a government or government-owned or controlled entity or of a public

international organization, or any n-acting in an official capacity for or on
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8.48.

8.49.

behalf of any of the foregoing, or any political party or party official or candidate for
political office) to influence official action or secure an improper advantage; and the
Company, and the Subsidiaries and to the knowledge of the Company, its Affiliates,
have conducted their businesses in compliance with applicable Anti-Corruption Laws
and have instituted and maintained and will continue to maintain policies and
procedures designed to promote and achieve compliance with such laws and with the
representation and warranty contained herein. No part of the proceeds of the Issue
will be used, directly or indirectly, in violation of the Money Laundering Laws or

Anti-Corruption Laws.

That all related party transactions disclosed in the Audited Financial Statements are
legitimate business transactions conducted on an arms’ length basis in accordance
with Applicable Law. All related party transactions have been disclosed in the Issue

Documents as required under Applicable Law and Ind AS.

The Company undertakes to pay all applicable stamp duties, other issuance or
transfer taxes, duties, other similar fees or charges required to be paid in connection
with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Registrar

Agreement, the Banker to Issue Al

A the [ssue Documents and all documents
}.-

related thereto, or the conduct ¢ ﬁ!r CORsk pfithe Issue and the Transactions, _

s..
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8.50. Except as disclosed in the Issue Documents, neither the Company nor the Directors
the Promoter are or have been wilful defaulters [EIIS defined under the SEBI ICDR

Regulations).

8.51. Neither the Promoter nor any of the Directors have been declared a fugitive

economic offender under section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

8.52. The Company accepts full responsibility for (i) the authenticity, correctness, validity
and reasonableness of the information, reports, statements, declarations,
undertakings, clarifications, documents and certifications (electronic or otherwise)
pﬁbvided or authenticated by its Promoter, Promoter Group, Directors, officers,
employees, agents, representatives, consultants or advisors, as applicable, or
otherwise obtained or delivered to the Lead Manager in connection with the Issue
(including those delivered prior to the date of this Agreement in connection with the
Issue) and (ii) the consequences, if any, of its Promoter, Promoter Group, directors,
officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants or advisors making a

|
misstatement or omission, providing misleading information or withholding or
concealing facts and other information which may have a bearing, directly or
indirectly, on the Issue or of any misstatements or omissions in the Issue Documents.
The Company expressly affirms that the Lead Manager and its Affiliates can rely on

these statements. declarations, undertakings, ¢larifications, documents and

ceilliﬁcatiuns, and the Lead Manager and its Affiliates shall not be liable in any
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8.53.

8.54.

The Company has made available for issue and authority to allot, free from pre-
emptive rights, sufficient authorised capital to enable the Rights Securities to be
issued and delivered pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and the Issue
Documents and is eligible under the Applicable law and regulations to issue and allot
the Rights Securities in the Issue and has authorized the Issue by the resolution
passed by the board of directors of the Company at its meeting held on December 26.

2022.

Except as would not have a Malerial Adverse Effect, as the case may be, the
Company own or possess adequate rights or are licensed to use all patents (as
applicable to the Company), trademarks, service marks, trade names, trademark
registrations, service mark registrations, copyrights, licenses, trade secrets.
technology, know-how and other patented and/or unpatentable proprietary or
confidential information, systems, procedures and materials (collectively, the
“Intellectual Property™) legally required for the conduct of their respective
businesses. Further. except where it would not reasonably be expected to result in a
Material Adverse Effect: (i) the Company, is not infringing or otherwise violating
any such rights of others, (ii) each of the Company has no reason to believe that the

conduct of their respective businesses will conflict with, and have not received any

notice of any claim of conflict dﬂ.fl}lig ent with, any such rights of others, (iii)

©
there is no pending action, WHMWE- Dr“{:]aim by any third party challenging

the validity, scope or enfo ﬂwlﬁﬁg Fuch TIntellectual Property (iv) to thf.: beﬂ_
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8.55.

knowledge and belief of Company, there is no threatened action, suit, proceeding or
claim by any third party that Company infringes or otherwise violates any patent,
trademark, copyright, trade secret or other proprietary rights of any third party, and
the Company is unaware of any other fact which would form a reasonable basis for
any such claim, and (v) there is no valid and subsisting patent or published patent
application that would preclude Company in any material respect, from making use

c}i‘:‘ any such Intellectual Property.

The Company possesses all material permits, certificates, licenses, approvals,
consents and other authorizations, order, registration, clearance or qualifications
[@ullectivei}r, “Governmental Licenses”), as the case may be, necessary for the
canduct of its business as presently conducted and for undertaking the Issue and have
made all necessary declarations and filings with, all central banks, local and all other
Indian and foreign governmental, administrative, supervisory, judiciary or other
agencies, bodies or authorities, self-regulatory organizations, courts and other
tribunals, arbitrators and all appropriate Indian and foreign regulatory agencies or
badies and stock exchange authorities (“Governmental Authorities™), to own, lease,
license, operate and use its properties and assets and necessary to conduct the
business now operated by them; the Company is in compliance with the terms and
conditions of all such Governmental Licenses, except where the failure to comply
would not have a Material Adverse Effect; all of the Governmental Licenses are

valid and in full force and effect; and the Company has not received any notice of

Reg No.21387
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8.56.

8.57.

any such Governmental Licenses which if the subject of an unfavorable decision,
ruling or finding, would result in a Material Adverse Effect; Further, there are no
material pending regulatory and government approvals for any existing line of

activity /project of the Company,

The Company undertakes to obtain Lender Consents (if any) required under any
agreements, sanction letters, arrangements into by the Company and its with their

respective lenders or any other instrument by which the Company is bound.

The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is Solvent and have no reason to believe
that they will cease to be so in the next 12 months. As used in this paragraph, the
term “Solvent” means, with respect to a particular date, that on such date: (i) the
present fair market value (or present fair saleable value) of the assets of the entity is
not less than the total amount required to pay the liabilities of the entity on its total
existing debts and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as they become due and
payable, (ii) the entity is able to realize upon its assets and pay its debts and other
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments as they mature and become due
and payable in the normal course of business, (iii) the entity is not incurring debts or
liabilities beyond its’ ability to pay as such debts and liabilities become due and
payable, (iv) the entity is not engaged in any business or transaction, and does not
propose to engage in bigsihe§s~pr transaction, for which its property would
constitute unreasonab yﬁﬁﬁ"@fﬂ rafter giving due consideration to the prevailing

AdvBcat,
practice in the ind

n Whith fHéentity/is engaged, (v) the entity will be able
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8.58.

8.59.

I
meet its obligations under all its outstanding indebtedness as they fall due, (vi) the

entity is not a defendant in any civil action that in the reasonable expectation of the
entity would result in a judgment that the entity is or would become unable to satisfy,
(vii) the entity has not received any notice under Section 13(2) of the Securitisation
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act,
2002 or having received the notice, the claim under the notice has not remained
unlsatisﬂed for a period of 60 days or more and (viii) are no actions initiated against
th%# entity under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and neither has any
application been filed before any National Company Law Tribunal nor any interim
resolution professional or resolution professional h;us been appointed in this regard

under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016,

It agrees that all representations, warranties, undertakings and covenants in this
Agreement, Engagement Letter or any certificates relating to, or given by, the
Cu;inpan}r on its behalf or on behalf of its Group, are after due consideration and
en Iuirg.r, and that the Lead Manager may seek recourse from the Company for any
breach of these representations, warranties, undertakings or covenants relating to or

given by the Company on its behalf or on behalf of such entities.

There are no fraudulent transactions involving the Company’s employees or
fraudulent transactions entered into by the Company with customers or other third

parties which would result in a Material Adverse Effect.




8.60.

8.61.

8.62,

The directors of the Company are eligible and qualified to be appointed as a director
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, including pursuant
to the Sections 149 and 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the applicable rules
thereunder and are not otherwise disqualified. Except as disclosed in the Issue
Documents, the name of the directors of the Company are not appearing on any list

of wilful defaulters maintained or published by CIBIL.

The Company and its Subsidiaries are not in breach, violation of, or in default (nor
has any event occurred which, with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both
would result in a default by the Company or its Subsidiaries) under its constitutional
documents, its agreements and instruments or any statute, law, rule, regulation,
policy, judgement, order or decree applicable to the Company or its Subsidiaries of
any Governmental authority having jurisdiction over them or any of their assets and
properties, where such breach, violation, default or event (other than under its
constitutional documents) could result in a Material Adverse Effect. Except as would
not have a Material Adverse Effect, there are no overdue amounts payable by or due
from the Company and its Subsidiaries, under any of their financing agreements or
sanction letters. Further, the Company and its Subsidiaries are incompliance with the

financial covenants specified under the financing agreements or sanction letters in

relation to their indebtedness.
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8.63.

8.64.

8.65.

rﬁspect to the Issue in the United States. The Company hereby confirms that it shall
b(l' solely responsible for the Issue Documents, and that Lead Manager will neither
verify independently. nor assume responsibility or liability for, the accuracy or
completeness of the information contained in the Issue Documents, including Issue

Documents issued to potential investors in the United States.

Ej:l‘icept as disclosed in the Issue Documents, there has been no communication,
I

written or otherwise, issued by any or both of the Stock Exchanges, the SEBI, the

RoC or by any other governmental or statutory authority in relation to any breach or

violation of rules, regulations or guidelines committed by the Company.

No stamp or other issuance or transfer taxes or duties and no capital gains, income,
|

wiEhholding or other taxes are payable by or on.behalf of the Company to the

Government of India or to any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or

otherwise in connection with (a) the creation, issue, offer, sale or delivery by the

Company of the Rights Securities, or (b) the consummation, execution and delivery

of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Engagement Letters. If

any taxes or duties as enumerated in this Clause are held to be payable by the Lead

Manager, the same shall be reimbursed by the Company on demand.

The Company undertakes to prepare the Issue Documents in compliance with, and to

ensure that the Issue Documents comply with, (i) the legal requirements connected

with the Issue, ii) the regulatipnsar
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8.66.

8.67.

of India and any other competent governmental or regulatory authority in this behalf
(including the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars), (iii)
customary disclosure standards for a rights issue under Part B of Schedule VI of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, and (iv) as per all Applicable law, including any applicable
statutory and/or regulatory requirements, to enable the investors to make a well
informed decision as to the investment in the Issue. The Company further undertakes
that the Issue Documents prepared in compliance with Applicable Law (including
Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations) shall contain all information
which, is material in the context of the Issue and that such information shall be true
and accurate in all material respects.

The Company, its Directors and Promoter are not and have not been a director or
promoter of any company that is an exclusively listed company on a derecognized,
non-operational or exited stock exchange which has failed to provide the trading
platform or exit to its shareholders within 18 months or such extended time as
permitied by SEBI. None of the Directors or Promoter of the Company has been a
promoter or director of any company which has been compulsorily delisted in terms
of Regulation 24 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2021 during the last ten (10) years preceding the date of filing

the Letter of Offer with the Stock Exchanges.

It is understood and agreed that the Lead Manager will not provide the Company or

==
any potential investors wi ﬁpa.gv ervices, including, but not limited to.
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8.68.

8.69.

support of or in relation to any dealings by the Company Entities, with or involving

any country, government, territory, person, vessel or entity subject to Sanctions.

N;ii)ne of the Directors of the Company is or was a director of any listed company
during the five years immediately preceding the date of filing of the Letter of Offer,
whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded on any stock
exchanges, during the term of their directorship in such company; and none of the
Directors of the Company is or was a director of any listed company which has been
nr@i was delisted from the stock exchanges, during the term of their directorship in

such company, in the last 10 years immediately preceding the date of filing of this

Letter of Offer.

Neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates. nor any person acting on its or their
behalf has engaged or will engage, in connection with the offering of the Rights
Sﬁi:urities, in any form of general solicitation or general advertising within the
meaning of Rule 502(c) of Regulation D of the U.S. Securities Act. In connection
with the offering of the Rights Securities, (i) neither the Company nor any of its
Affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf has engaged or will engage in
any directed selling efforts and (ii) each of the Company and its Affiliates and any
person acting on its or their behalf has complied and will comply with applicable

offering restrictions,
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8.70.

8.71.

8.72.

The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Rights Entitlements and Rights
Securities have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or
under any securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction of the United States and
may not be offered, sold. resold, allotted, taken up, exercised, renounced, pledged,
transferred or delivered, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to or for
the account or benefit, of U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S under the U.S.
Securities Act) except pursuant to an applicable exemption from, or in a transaction
not subject to, the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and in
compliance with any applicable securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction of

the United States.

The Company has complied with and will comply with the selling restrictions set
forth in the Letter of Offer in the section titled “Restrictions on the Purchase and
Resale™.
The Company represents that neither the Company nor any of the Company Entities
nor any director or officer nor, to the knowledge of the Company, any Affiliate,
employee, agent or representative of the Company or any of the Company Entities, is
an individual or entity that is, or is owned or controlled by a person that is:
a) currently subject of any (i) the economic or financial sanctions or sanctions
laws, regulations, trade embargoes or restrictive measures administered,

enacted or enforced by: (a) United States government; (b) the United

Nios T
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or (d) the respective governmental institutions and agencies of any of the
foregoing, including, without limitation, the Office of Foreign Assets Control
of the U.S. Department of the Treasury, the U.S. Department of State, United
Nations Security Council, the United States Department of State, Her
Majesty’s Treasury, the State Secretariat for Economic Affairs of Switzerland
or the Swiss Directorate of International Law, the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority, and the Monetary Authority of Singapore and/or any other relevant
sanctions authority (collectively, the “Sanctions Authorities™); or (ii) any
sanctions or requirements imposed by, or based upon the obligations or
authorities set forth in, the U.S. International Emergency Economic Powers
Act, Iran Sanctions of 1996, the Comprehensive Iran Sanctions,
Accountability, and Divestment Act of 2010, the Iran Freedom and Counter-
Proliferation Act of 2010, the U.S. Trading With the Enemy Act, the U.S.
United Mations Participation Act or the U.S, Syria Accountability and
| Lebanese Sovereignty Restoration Act, all as amended, or any of the foreign
asset control regulations of the United States Department of Treasury
(including, without limitation, 31 CFR, Subtitle B, Chapter V, as amended) or
any enabling legislation or executive order relating thereto (collectively,

*Sanctions™);

b) located, organized or resident in a country or territory that is or whose

government is, the subject gﬁ-ﬁ“"ﬂ? N
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c) listed on, or owned or controlled by or 50% or more owned in the aggregate by
a person listed on, or acting on behalf of one or more persons or entities that
are currently the subject of any sanctions administered or enforced by the
Sanctions or listed on, any Sanctions list; (ii) located in, incorporated under the
laws of, or owned (directly or indirectly) or controlled by, resident in a country
or territory that is, or acting on behalf of, a person located in or organized
under the laws of a country or territory that is or whose government is, the
target of country-wide or territory-wide Sanctions; or (iii) otherwise a target of
Sanctions (“target of Sanctions™ signifying a person with whom a US person or
other person required to comply with the relevant Sanctions would be
prohibited or restricted by law from engaging in trade, business or other

activities) (collectively. “Restricted Party™);

d) has engaged in, are is now engaged in, or will engage in, or has any plans to
engage in any dealings, transactions, connections or business operations with

or for the benefit of any Restricted Party, or in any country or territory, that at

js.or was the subject of Sanctions, or any

b
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8.73.

8.74.

8.75.

|I ¢) has received notice of or is aware of any claim, action, suit, proceeding or

| investigation against it with respect to Sanctions by any Sanctions Authority.
The Company will not directly or indirectly use the proceeds from the Issue, or lend,
contribute or otherwise make available such proceeds, to any Subsidiary or other
person or entity, to fund or facilitate any activities or business of or with any Person
or in any country or territory, that, at the time of such funding or facilitation, is the
subject of Sanctions, or in any other manner that will result in a violation of
Sanctions by, or could result in the imposition of Sanctions against, any person
(including any person participating in the Issue, whether as lead managers, advisor,

|

investor or otherwise) or becoming a Restricted Party.

The Company is not required to, and after giving effect to the Issue and sale of the
Equity Shares and the application of the proceeds thercof as described in the
Placement Documents, will not be required to be registered as an “investment

company” within the meaning of the Investment Company Act;

The Company has not taken and will not take, directly or indirectly, any action
designed to or that has constituted or that might reasonably be expected to, cause or
result in stabilization or manipulation of the price of any of its securities to facilitate

the sale or resale of the Rights Entitlements and Rights Securities in violation of

applicable law.




8.76.

8.77.

8.78.

The Company undertakes to ensure that, all matters in relation to investor complaints
arising with respect to the Issue shall be directed to the compliance officer of the

Company and shall be handled by the Company in accordance with Applicable Law.

It undertakes to pay all applicable stamp duties, other issuance or transfer taxes,
duties, other similar fees or charges required to be paid in connection with the
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Issue Documents and all
documents related thereto, or the conduct and consummation of the Issue and the

Transactions.

Any correspondence with the SEBI, the RBI, the Stock Exchanges or any other
Governmental Authority in connection with the Issue shall promptly be provided by
the Company to the Lead Manager to enable the Lead Manager to correspond, on
behalf of itself or the Company with the SEBI, or the Stock Exchanges or any other

regulatory authorities in connection with the Issue

9. Representations and Warranties of the Lead Manager

9.1.

The Lead Manager hereby represents and warrants to the Company, as to itself only,

that this Agreement has been duly authorised, executed and delivered by it, and is a

valid and legally bindinig obligstipl WD &
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9.2, Neither the Lead Manager nor any of its Affiliates has engaged or will engage in any
act inconsistent with the procedures contemplated in the Letter of Offer in the section

titled [“Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures — Selling Restrictions”].

9.3.  The Lead Manager hereby represents and warrants to the Company, that SEBI has
granted to it a certificate of registration to act as a merchant banker in accordance

ith the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations,
1992, as amended, and that it is entitled to carry on business as a merchant banker

under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992,

9.4,  The Lead Manager hereby represents and warrants to the Company that (i) it or any
of its Affiliates or any person acting on its behalf has not made and will not make,
directly or indirectly, offers or sales of any security, and has not solicited and will not
solicit offers to buy any security, under circumstances that would require the
relstratiﬂn of the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Securities under the U.S.

Securities Act; and (ii) neither it nor any of its Aiﬁ.liates. nor any person acting on

their behalf has engaged in or will engage in any directed selling efforts with respect

to the Rights Entitlement or the Rights Securities or has engaged in or will engage in
connection with the offering of the Rights Securities in the United States, any form

of general solicitation or general advertising within the meaning of Rule 502(c) under

the U.S. Securities Act,

10. Appuintmenl of Intermediaries




10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

The Company shall, in consultation with the Lead Manager, appoint the
Intermediaries. Fees payable to the Intermediaries shall be payable by the Company
in accordance with the appointment or engagement letters of such Intermediaries,
respectively, and the Lead Manager shall not be responsible for the payment of any

fees or expenses of any Intermediary.

The Parties agree that any Intermediary who is appointed shall be registered with
SEBI, where applicable under the applicable regulations issued by SEBI from time to

time

Whenever required, the Company shall, in consultation with the Lead Manager, enter
into @ memorandum of understanding or agreement with the concerned Intermediary
associated with the Issue, clearly setting out their mutual rights, responsibilities and
obligations. Certified true copies of such memorandum of understanding or

agreement shall be furnished to the Lead Manager.

The Company shall not, directly or indirectly, engage or associate with any other
agency to carry out any part of the service agreed to be performed by the Lead

Manager without consulting the Lead Manager. Fees and expenses due to such

agencies, if appointed, shall be pa _by the Company directly and the Lead
0TA4
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10.5.

10.6.

10.7.

All costs and expenses relating to the Issue im’;]uding listing fees, hotel and travel

e!:_tpenses of Company’s personnel, fees, commissions, brokerages and expenses paid
i

to any Intermediaries or other agencies or legal counsel to the Issue shall be borne by

the Company and all steps shall be taken by the Company to pay

fees/charges/commissions as mentioned in the specified agreements.

E‘}'uring the period of engagement of the Lead Manager hereunder, except what is in
thc public domain, the Company will not discuss the Issue or any other placement or
issuance and allotment of any equity or equity linked securities of the Company
relating to this issue with any third parties, except with the prior consent of the Lead
Manager (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld), and it will promptly
notify the Lead Manager if it receives any inquiry concerning the Rights Securities.
Nothing contained herein shall be interpreted to prevent the Company from retaining
legal counsel or such other advisers or parties as may be required for taxation,
adi:nums, legal matters, employee matters, due diligence and related matters in
cd!rmectiun with the Issue. However, the Lead Manager shall not be liable in any

manner whatsoever for the actions of any other advisors or parties appointed by the

Company.

The Lead Manager shall have no liability with respect to acts or omissions of any

Intermediary, however the Lead Manager shall undertake the actions set out in

t any such Intermediary, being an

R
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independent entity, shall be fully and solely responsible for the performance of its

duties and obligations.

11. Publicity for the Issue

11.1.

11.2.

The Company confirms that as a part of the existing arrangement which the
Company has with the Media Agencies, it has permitied the Media Agencies to
extend certain services to the Lead Manager in relation to tracking media reports,
news reports, advertisements and publications and providing a compliance report to
the Lead Manager on media coverage related to the Issue in accordance with the
provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Company undertakes to make all
payments to the Media Agencies for the services rendered by the Media Agencies to

the Lead Manager.

The Company shall obtain prior approval of the Lead Manager, DLC and ILC. in
respect of all IS$HI¢ advertisements, publicity material or any other media
communications in connection with the Issue and shall make available to them copies
of all Issue-related material. The Company shall ensure that all publicity materials
including advertisements prepared and released by the advertising agency or
otherwise in connection with the Issue conform to the SEBI ICDR Regulations and
instructions given by the Lead Manager from time to time. The Company shall not

make any misleading or incorrect statements or release any material or information,

which is not contained in !&e%.lr;‘cﬂuﬁ)
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11.3.

advertisements up to the listing of shares proposed to be issued in this Issue. The
Company shall not release any publicity material without the prior approval of the
LTad Manager., and in case, it does so then the Company shall be solely responsible
for any legal repercussions that would follow. Any interviews by the Company's
Promoters, Directors, duly authorized employees or representatives, documentaries
about the Company or its Promoters, periodical reports and press releases issued by
the Company or research report made by the Company or at any press, stock brokers’

or investors’ conferences, shall also conform to SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Sa.#:;jcct to the applicable regulations and laws regarding publicity restrictions issued
b}r|' SEBI, the Lead Manager may, at its own expense place advertisements in
newspapers and other external publications describing its involvement in the Issue
and the services rendered by it, and may use the Company’s name and logo in this
rcgard after the completion of the Issue. The I.Iead Manager agrees that such
advertisements shall be issued only after the date on which the Rights Securities to be
offered and issued pursuant to the Issue are approved for trading on the Stock
Exthanges and. in the event that approval for trading on each of the Stock Exchanges
occurs on different dates, the later date shall be the relevant date for the purpose of

this Clause.

In case the Company issues any Advertisement/ Interview/ Press Releases or any

mecilia communication, without the prior permission from the Lead Manager, and any
I

subsequent liability due to the sam g anager, shall be indemnified due to




the same by the Company including all the costs/ expenses/ penalties, in respect

thereof.

12. Post-Issue Work

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

The Company shall take such steps as are necessary to ensure the completion of
Allotment and dispatch of letters of allotment and refund to the Applicants for the
Rights Securities soon after the basis of allotment has been approved by the
Designated Stock Exchange and/or the Rights Issue Committee of the Company and
in any case not later than the statutory time limit, if any. save and except on account
of reasons beyond its control, and in the event of failure to do so, pay interest and
penalty to the Applicants for the Rights Securities as provided in the Letter of Offer
or otherwise mquirﬂd. under any applicable law or regulation or pursuant to any order
or direction of the SEBI, the Stock Exchanges or any regulatory and/or statutory

authority.

The Company shall set up an investor grievance redressal system to redress all Issue
related grievances in compliance with recent SEBI Rights Circulars to the

satisfaction of the Lead Manager.

The Company shall refund the money raised in the Issue to the Applicants for the

Rights Securities if required to do so for any reason such as failing to get listing

OTAg
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13. Binding Effect, Entire Understanding

13.1.

13.2.

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the
benefit of the Parties hereto. Except in relation to fees and expenses contained in the
Engagement Letters, these terms and conditions supersede and replace any and all
prior contracts, understandings or arrangements, whether oral or written, heretofore
made between any of the Parties hereto and relating.to the subject matter hereof, and
as of the date hereof constitute the entire understanding of the Parties with respect to
the Issue. In case of any inconsistency or dispute between the terms of this
Agreement and the Engagement Letter, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail,
provided, however, the Engagement Letter shall prevail over this Agreement solely
w‘,léaere such inconsistency or dispute relates to the fees or expenses payable to the

Léad Manager for the Issue or taxes payable with respect thereto.

Friinm the date of this Agreement up to the date of commencement of trading of
Righls Securities, the Company shall not enter into any initiatives, agreements,
r:dEImnitments or understandings (whether legally binding or not) relevant to this
Agreement or the Issue, with any person or be taken which may directly or indirectly
affect or be relevant in connection with the Issue, without the prior consent of the
Lead Manager. The Company further confirms that neither they nor the Promoter or
Directors have or will enter mB % E contractual arrangement, commitment or
R

understanding relating to th &s’ﬁ}aﬁ without th prior written consent of the Lead
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14. Indemnity and Contribution

14.1.

14.2.

As CPCPL would be acting on behalf of the Company, the Company agrees to
indemnify and keep indemnified and hold harmless CPCPL, its respective affiliates,
and the present and future directors, employees and officers, at all times. from the
date of this Engagement Letter (EL), from and against any and all claims, actions,
liabilities, losses, damages, costs, charges, fee, expenses, penalties. suils or
proceedings, of whatever nature, (including but not limited to the expenses/costs and
resources expended by the CPCPL in defending itself, its directors, officers,
employees and affiliates etc.,) arising from or in connection to or caused by this EL
or the Issue or any other agreement entered into by the CPCPL in relation to the Issue
including, without limitation, arising out of activities conducted in connection with

or in furtherance of the Issue and/or the activities contemplated thereby.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this EL or anywhere else, if any claim,
including but not limited to any claim or action or liability or loss or expense or fee
(of whatever nature) arises against CPCPL, whether directly or indirectly, because of

or due to any negligence/ misrepresentation/ wrong intimation/ untrue

disclosure/breach of representatio ﬁ;'r- covenants or confirmation or

v
undertaking or declaration by B&P%h Hipal

moters, duecto;;,_uff cers,
SN afg




14.3.

14.4.

14.5.

14.6.

representatives, agents, in the activities conducted in connection with or in
furtherance of the Issue and/or the activities cnnten;tplaled thereby, CPCPL shall be

completely indemnified and be kept indemnified and held harmless, by the Company

for the same.

Provided that any potential liability arising on CPCPL on account of gross
negligence on its part, shall not exceed the aggregate amount of the fees received by

thI:- CPCPL pursuant to this EL relating to the Tssue.

Provided also that nothing contained hereinabove or anywhere else shall limit any
rights or remedies that may otherwise be available to CPCPL under the EL or any

other agreement, at law or in equity.”

“The indemnity provisions contained hereinabove, including the representations,
warranties, covenants and other statements of the Company, including those made by
its promoters, directors, officers, representatives or agents efc., contained
hq:reinabuve or in any other agreement entered into with CPCPL in relation with or
CE!]‘mﬂcﬁ{m to the Issue, shall remain operative and in full force and effect regardless
ofi (i) any termination or completion of this EL or any other agreement; (ii) the
actual or constructive knowledge of, or any investigation made by or on behalf of

CPCPL or its Affiliates.

btain the consents/approvals, as may be

In case, the Company is not %ﬁ;ﬂ
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claim against the Company, on whatsoever ground, the Company undertakes that it

will keep the Lead Manager harmless and fully indemnified at all times.

15. Notices

Any notice or other communication given pursuant to this Agreement must be in writing
and either (i) delivered personally, or (ii) sent by electronic mail or (ii) sent by registered
mail to the address of the Party specified below. All notices and other communications
required or permitted under this Agreement will (i) if delivered personally or by
overnight courier, be deemed given upon delivery; (ii) if delivered by email, be deemed
given when clectronically confirmed; and (iii) if sent by registered mail, be deemed given

when received.

If to the Company:

Share India Seeu;'iﬁe! Limited

Address: 1701, 17th Floor, Dalal

Street Commercial Co-operative Society Limited,
Road 5E, Block 53, Zone 5, Gift City,

Gandhi Nagar, Gujarat, 382355

Attention: Mr. Vikas Aggarwal

E-mail: M@%&g@‘ﬁ A
irs

f Ved :"‘{gﬁh Uppal
|| ALY Garg

Reg No.213g7
If to the Lead Managﬁr:% G.B.Nagar '53-
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| D-28, South Extension I, New Delhi, Delhi 110049
! Attention: Anjali Aggarwal

Email: anjali@indiacp.com, mb@indiacp.com

Any Party hereto may change its address by a notice given to the other Parties hereto in

the manner set forth above.

16. Arbitration - Governing law and jurisdiction

16.1.

16.2.

In the event a dispute arises out of or in relation to or in connection with the validity
interpretation, implementation or alleged breach of this Agreement (the “Dispute™),
tlilr: Parties (the “Disputing Parties”) shall attempt in the first instance to resolve such
dﬁput& through negotiations between the Disputing Parties. If the dispute is not
resolved through negotiations within 30 business days after commencement of
discussions (or such longer period as the Disputing Parties may agree to in writing)
then either of the Disputing Parties, by notice in miting to each of the other Parties,
may submit the Dispute to arbitration to be conducted in accordance with the
provisions of The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, as amended (the
“Arbitration  Act”). Further, subject to the arbitration provisions mentioned
hereinbelow, the courts of Delhi, India shall have sole and exclusive jurisdiction for

any appellate reliefs under this Agreement.

Any reference of the Dispute to arbitration under this Agreement shall not affect the

performance of terms, other th related to the matter under arbitration, by




16.3. The arbitration shall be conducted as follows:

(a) all proceedings in any such arbitration shall be conducted in the English language:

(b)all Disputes between the Parties arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement shall be referred to or submitted to arbitration in Delhi, India (seat
and venue of arbitration);

(c) the Lead Manager shall appoint one arbitrator and the Company shall appoint one
arbitrator. The two arbitrators so appointed shall appoint one more arbitrator so
that the total number of arbitrators shall be three. In the event of a party failing
to appoint an arblitratur or the arbitrators failing to appoint the third arbitrator as
provided herein within 15 days of notice, such arbitrator(s) shall be appointed in
accordance with the Arbitration Act and that the arbitrators so appointed shall
have at least three vears of relevant expertise in the area of securities and/or
commercial laws;

(d)the arbitrators shall have the power to award interest on any sums awarded;

(e) notwithstanding the power of the arbitrator to grant interim relief, the Disputing
Parties shall have the power to seek appropriate interim relief from the courts of
Delhi, India, which shall have sole and exclusive jurisdiction;

() the arbitration award shall state the reasons on which it was based;

(g)the arbitration award shall .-conclusive and binding on the Parties and

R D



(h)each Party shall bear the cost of preparing and presenting its case before the
arbitration tribunal while the Parties involved in the Dispute shall share the costs

" of such arbitration including fees payable to arbitrators equally unless otherwise
|
|

(i) the arbitrators may award to a Disputing Party, that substantially prevails on

awarded or fixed by the arbitrators;

merits, its costs and actual expenses (including actual fees of its counsel); and
(j) the Disputing Parties shall co-operate in good faith to expedite, to the maximum
extent practicable, the conduct of any arbitral proceedings commenced pursuant

to this Agreement.

17. Term and Termination

17.1.  The Lead Manager’s appointment as Lead Manager to the Issue will continue until:
{a.) termination of this Agreement in accordance with the provisions hereunder, or (b)
upon commencement of trading of the Rights Securities pursuant to the Issue and the
cqlmpletion of all SEBI compliances in connection with the Issue (“Closing Date™),

whichever is earlier.

17.2. Notwithstanding anything contained in clause 16.[, Lead Manager shall have the
option, to be exercised in the sole discretion of the Lead Manager and to be exercised
at any time until the allotment of the Rights Securities, of termination of this

| wilors
Algreement under any or all of the following circumstances:
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(a) there shall have been any breach or potential breach by the Company of. or any
event rendering untrue or incorrect or misleading in any respect, any of the
representation or warranties contained herein or any failure to perform any of the
Company’s undertakings or agreements in this Agreement or the Engagement
Letters which is, in the opinion of the Lead Manager, materially adverse in the
context of the Issue or the allotment of the Rights Securities pursuant to the Issue;
(ii) or if there is an:,lf non-compliance by the Company of: (A) applicable laws and
regulations related to the Issue, or (B) applicable laws and regulations related to its
business and operations and such non-compliance, either singly or in the aggregate
results in a Material Adverse Effect; or (iii) all corporate and regulatory approvals
and lender consents required to be obtained by the Company for the Issue prior to
the Closing Date, have not been obtained by the Company as of the dates on which
such corporate and regulatory approvals and lender consents are required to be

obtained;

(b) trading in any securities of the Company has been suspended or limited by the SEBI
on any exchange or over-the-counter market or trading generally having been
suspended or materially limited on or by any of the Stock Exchanges or minimum or
maximum prices for trading have been fixed by the Stock Exchanges or any other

applicable governmental or regulatory authority or a material disruption has
==

occurred in commercial h?\f@m}.
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I
{¢) A general moratorium on commercial banking activities have been declared by the

relevant Indian, authorities;

(d) Any material adverse change in the financial markets in India or the international
ﬁ'!nancial markets, any outbreak of hostilities (including terrorism) or escalation
thereof or any calamity or crisis or any other change or development involving a
prospective change in India or Indian or international political, financial or
economic conditions (including the imposition of or a change in exchange controls
c‘::r a change in currency exchange rates) in each case the effect of which event,
singularly or together with any other such event, is such as to make it, in the sole

judgment of the Lead Manager, impracticable or inadvisable to market the Rights

Securities on the terms and in the manner contemplated in the Issue Documents;

(¢) There shall have occurred any Material Adverse Effect which, in the sole judgment
I
of the Lead Manager, makes it impracticable to market the Rights Securities or to
enforce contracts for the sale of the Rights Securities on the terms and in the manner

contemplated in the Issue Documents; or

() l-1'he:1-f: shall have occurred any regulatory change, or any development involving a
prospective regulatory change (including, but not limited to, a change in the

regulatory environment in which the Company operates or a change in the

regulations and guidelines '&%Ihe terms of this Issue) or any order or

| < £
directive from SEBI, Registrar of ?ﬂpﬁg‘ﬂ_ﬁ Delhi & Haryana, Stock Exchanges or
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b i, 5

17.4.

any other Indian governmental, regulatory or judicial authority or any downgrade in
any existing rating that, in the sole judgment of the Lead Manager, are material and
adverse and that makes it, impracticable to market the Rights Securities or to
enforce contracts for the sale of the Rights Securities on the terms and in the manner

contemplated in the Letter of Offer.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Parties (with regard to their
obligations pursuant to this Agreement) may terminate this Agreement with or

without cause upon giving 10 (ten) calendar days’ prior written notice at any time.

No such termination by the Company or by any of the Lead Manager. would affect
the Lead Manager’ right: (i) to receive the fees for services rendered till such
termination, or (ii) ttlm receive reimbursement for out of pocket expenses, provided
that, such payment of fees and reimbursement or expenses would be subject to the

terms and conditions specified in the Engagement Letter.

Notwithstanding anything stated hereinabove, the provisions of Clause 3 (Payments),
Clause 6 (Supplying of Information and Documents), Clause 8 (Representations and
Warranties of the Company), Clause 14 (Indemnity & Contribution), Clause 15
(Notices), Clause 16 (Arbitration), Clause 17.3 {(Term and Termination), Clause 18

(Confidentiality), Clause 20 (Governing Law), Clause 21 (Severability), Clause 22

(Binding Effect. Entire Ag:remr?n&f’ézfﬁ- 24 (Miscellaneous) shall survive the




made by or on behalf of the Lead Manager or the Company, and will survive delivery
of and payment for the Rights Securities of this Agreement shall survive any

termination of this Agreement.

18. Confidentiality

18.1. The Lead Manager agrees to treat as confidential this Agreement and any
information relating specifically to the Issue that is disclosed by the Company or by
any of its employees, officers or Directors involved in the Issue to the Lead Manager
for the purpose of the execution of this engagement, (“Confidential information™),
e:!:c:ept that the foregoing shall not apply:

{aji To any information which, prior to its disclosure in connection with this Issue.

| was already in the possession of the Lead Manager 1.e. when not acting as Lead

Manager for purposes of the Issue;

(b) To any information which is required to be disclosed, or is disclosed. in the Issue
Document;

(¢} Any information which is made public with the prior consent of the Company:

(d) To any disclosure by Lead Manager to its Affiliates and their respective
employees, analysts, legal counsel, independent auditors and other experts or
agents who need to know such information for and in connection with the Issue:

(¢) To any information, which is or comes into the public domain without any default

' on the part of the Lead Manager of the terms of this Agreement or was or




employees, research analysts, advisors, legal counsel, independent auditors and
other experts or agents from a source which is or was not known by Lead
Manager or its Affiliates to be subject to a confidentiality obligation to the
Company, their respective Affiliates or to the Directors, as the case may be;

(f) To any disclosure pursuant to any law or order of any court or pursuant to any
direction, request or requirement (whether or not having the force of law) of any
central bank or any governmental, statutory, regulatory, administrative and/or,
supervisory or other authority, subject to notice to the Company;

(g) To any information which is required to be disclosed upon the request or demand
of any regulatory, statutory, judicial and/or administrative authority or any stock
exchange having jurisdiction over the Lead Manager or any of its Affiliates; or

(h) To any information that the Lead Manager in its discretion reasonably deem
appropriate to disclose with respect to any proceeding for the protection or
enforcement of any of their or their respective Affiliate’s, rights out of this

Agreement or Engagement Letters or otherwise in connection with the Issue.

18.2. Obligation of confidentiality will not apply to any information that is stated in the
Issue Documents, which may have been filed with relevant regulatory authorities
(excluding any informal filings or filings where the documents are treated in a

confidential manner}), or was included in any investor presentation or advertisements
~/‘::.‘l‘“'lE A
a
B

or in the opinion of the Lead anager is nec to make the statements therein not
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18.3.

18.4.

The Company acknowledges that, any advice or opinions provided by the Lead
Mnnager under or pursuant to this Issue shall not be disclosed or referred to, publicly
or to any third party except in accordance with the prior written consent from the
Lead Manager and except where such information is required to be disclosed by law
or in connection with disputes between the Parties or if required to be disclosed by a
court of law or any other regulatory, statutory, judicial and/or administrative

authority.

The Parties agree to keep confidential the terms specified under this Agreement and
the Engagement Letters and agree that no public announcement or communication
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement or the Engagement Letters shall be
issued or dispatched without the prior written consent of the Parties except as may be
required (a) under Applicable Law and (b) agreed pursuant to this Agreement;
provided that, if the information is required to be so disclosed, the disclosing Party
shall provide the other Parties with reasonable prior notice of such requirement and
such disclosures, with sufficient details so as to enable the other Parties to obtain
appropriate injunctive or other relief to prevent such disclosure, and the Company
shall cooperate at their own expense with any action that the Lead Manager may

reguest, to maintain the confidentiality of such advice or opinions.

The Lead Manager shall be entitled to retain all information furnished by the

Company and its advisors, re Wﬁrﬁ; or counsel to the Lead Manager in

connection with the Issue,

duprnrl



18.5.

18.6.

defenses available to the Lead Manager under applicable laws, including, without
limitation, any due diligence defenses. Further, the Lead Manager shall be entitled to
retain all correspondence, records, workings, analysis and other papers prepared by it
or its Affiliates in connection with the Issue either stored electronically or physically

or otherwise.

The Company unequivocally and unconditionally represents and warrants to the Lead
Manager and its Affiliates that the information provided by the Company or its
Affiliates is in their, or their respective Affiliate’s lawful possession and is not in
breach of any agreement or obligation with respect to any third party’s confidential
or proprietary information. The Company also agrees that neither the Lead Manager
nor its Affiliates shall have any liability, whether in contract, tort (including
negligence) or otherwise under Applicable Laws, in respect of any error or omission
arising from or in connection with the electronic communication of information and
reliance by the Company on such information and including the acts or omission of
any service providers, and any unauthorised interception, alteration or fraudulent

generation or transmission of electronic transmission by any third parties,

The provisions of this Clause shall supersede all previous confidentiality agreements
executed amongst the Company and the Lead Manager. In the event of any conflict

between the provisions of ai;p{'&'q 3

Llﬂj o Jf = 1=
agreement, the provisions of Clause Lﬂgﬁil frewail.
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|
18.7. The confidentiality obligation shall be operative from the date of this Agreement

until a period of 18 months from the date of listing of the Rights Securities.

19. Grounds H.iILll Consequences of Breach

19.1. 'ﬁ:ﬂ Lead Manager shall not be liable under this Agreement, in contract or tort, under
statute or otherwise, any amount with respect to loss of profit, data or goodwill, or
any other consequential, incidental, indirect, punitive or special damages in
cd_irnnecliun with claims arising out of this Agreement or otherwise relating to the
Si&wict's, whether or not the likelihood of such loss or damage was contemplated.
T_i‘]f: liability of the Lead Manager, in contract or tort. under statute or otherwise in
c:;nneutinn with this Transaction, shall not in any event exceed the fees (net of
e:i:penses and taxes) actually received by the Lead Manager.

20. Governing Law
This Agreement shall be governed by and performed in accordance with the law of India

 and subject to the Arbitration provisions hereof the courts in Delhi, India shall have sole

and exclusive jurisdiction in relation to the matters pertaining hereto.

21. Severability

If anyé provision or any portion of a provision of this Agreement or the Engagement

Letters is or becomes invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability will

not inyalidate or render unenforceable the Agreement or Engagement Letters, but rather




portion thereof, and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereto will be construed and
enforced accordingly. Each Party will use its reasonable efforts to negotiate and
implement a substitute prlm'isinn which is valid and enforceable and which, as nearly as
possible, provides the Parties hereto the benefits of the invalid or unenforceable
provision.

22. Binding Effect, Entire Agreement

22.1. These terms and conditions will be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties
hereto, their successors, and permitted assigns. These terms and conditions supersede
and replace any and all prior contracts, understandings or arrangements, whether oral
and/or written, here before made between any of the Parties hereto and relating to the
subject matter hereof, and as of the date hereof constitute the entire understanding of
the Parties with respe-ct to the Issue.

22.2. The Parties hereto acknowledge, declare and confirm that this Agreement, together
with the Engagement Letters referred to herein, represents the entire agreement
between them regarding the subject matter hereof and no alterations, additions or
modifications hereto shall be valid and binding unless the same are reduced to
writing and signed by all the Parties.

23. Certain Acknowledgements

23.1. In the event the Comp

X Aﬂ'- mply with any of the provisions of this

;..
Agreement and such mmﬂ'ﬁe is lil’oughl to the notice of the Company, the

HOvag
Lead Manager, shall aﬂpaﬁi% wu?draw frc:m the Issue either temporarnly
B.Nagar N/ .
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232,

23.3.

23.4.

and/or permanently, without prejudice to the compensation and the out of pocket
expenses payable to it in terms of their respective Engagement Letter.

|
T;he duties and responsibilities of the Lead Manager under this Agreement shall be
limited to those expressly set out in this Agreement and the Engagement Letter, and
shall not include general financial, strategic advice and providing services as
reii:eiving bankers or Registrar. No tax, legal. regu]:litur}'. accounting or technical or

specialist advice is being given by the Lead Manager.

The Lead Manager may provide services herein through one or more of its Affiliates,
as it deems appropriate, after prior consultation with the Company, The Lead
Manager shall be responsible for the activities carried out by its Affiliates in relation
to this Issue, only if such activities are specifically delegated by the Lead Manager to

its Affiliates and there is an established breach of this Agreement by such Affiliate.

|

'V'Elle Company acknowledges and agrees (i) in canpectiun with the Issue, the Lead
Manager and its Affiliates are not acting as an agent or fiduciary and are an
independent contractor, retained to act for the Company (and any duties of the Lead
Manager arising out of this Agreement will be owed only to the Company). The
Company acknowledges and agrees that the Lead Manager has neither assumed nor
will assume a fiduciary responsibility in favour of the Company with respect to the
Issue (irrespective of whether the Lead Manager has advised or is currently advising

the Company on other matters) and the Lead Manager does not have any obligation



23.5.

23.6.

23.7.

to the Company with respect to the Issue except the obligations expressly set forth
herein. Accordingly, the Lead Manager shall not be liable for any claims brought
against them for the issue price being set at a level that it is too high or too low or for
any sale of Rights Securities by investors to which such Rights Securities are

allocated.

The provision of services by the Lead Manager herein is subject to the requirements
of any laws and regulations applicable to the Lead Manager and its Affiliates. The
Lead Manager and its Affiliates are authorised by the Company to carry out all such
acts, deeds and mingg which they consider are appropriate, necessary or desirable to
carry out their services herein or to comply with any applicable laws, rules,
regulations, codes of conduct, authorisations, consents and the Company hereby

agrees to ratify and confirm all such actions lawfully taken.

The Company acknowledges that, this Agreement is not intended to constitute, and
should not be construed as a commitment between the Company and the Lead
Manager with respect to underwriting or purchasing the Rights Securities in the Issue
and the Lead Manager and the Company may, in their sole judgment and discretion,

determine at any time not to proceed with the Issue.

The Company hereby a ﬂl&s_] #’d\ agrees that the Lead Manager and its

Affiliates (together, the * l\:{ﬁfﬁ? @fﬁaﬁpﬂ.@ a wide range of advisory services and

""'I"‘-r'l'l...n_,f} i
businesses (including C % ﬁ%@h‘:ﬁaﬁ@em;t fi rw.nmal advisory, corporate and
agar
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23.8.

23.9.

investment banking and). the Company agrees that the Lead Manager is not required
to restrict their activities as a result of this engagement, and that the Lead Manager
may undertake any business activity without further consultation with or notification
to the Company. Provided however that, nothing contained in this Clause shall affect

| obligations of confidentiality set forth in this Agreement.

||
Neither this Agreement nor the receipt by the Lead Manager of confidential
information or any other matter shall give rise to any fiduciary, equitable or
contractual duties (including without limitation any rdut},r of trust or confidence) that
would prevent or restrict the Lead Manager from acting on behalf of other customers
or for their own accounts. Furthermore, the Company agrees that neither the Lead
Manager nor any member or business of the Lead Manager is under a duty to
disclose to the Company or use on behalf of the Company any information
whatsoever about or derived from those activities or to account for any revenue or
profits obtained in connection with such activities. The Lead Manager or its
Af!:ﬂliate{s} involved in the Issue will not use confidential information obtained from
lht‘l'.. Company except in connection with its services to, and its relationship with, the

Company or except in situations identified in Clause 17 of this Agreement.

The Parties agree and undertake that they will not circulate or will cause to circulate
the Issue Documents in those jurisdictions where the circulation of the Issue

Documents would be contrary to law.

e
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24. Miscellaneous

24.1. No modification, alteration or amendment of this Agreement or any of its terms or
provisions shall be valid or legally binding on the Parties unless made in writing and

duly executed by or on behalf of all the Parties hereto.

24.2. These terms and conditions of this Agreement are not assignable by any Party hereto

without the prior written consent of all the other Parties hereto save and except for an

assignment by the Lead Manager in favour of any of its Affiliates.

24.3. In the event that any provision contained in this Agreement conflicts with any
provision in the Engagement Letter, the provisions contained in this Agreement will
prevail to the extent of such inconsistency, except for the fees and out of pocket

expenses which shall be governed by the Engagement Letter.

This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and
delivered shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts shall constitute one and the

same instrument.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE CAUSED THIS AGREEMENT TO BE
I
DULY EXECUTED AND DELIVERED BY THEIR DULY AUTHORISED

REPRESENTATIVES AS OF THE DATE WRITTEN BELOW
I

Signed and delivered for and on behalf of SHARE INDIA SECURITIES LIMITED

Designation; Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Date: 2&1‘]2.!&]23

AT'FEéTED

Ved Prakash Uppal
Notary Advocate
Reg No.21387
G.B. Nagar

QOTA%,

Ved Prayaw, |

o o8 No.213g7
0 G.B.Nﬁs.ar \?"
W
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Annexure B

Terms of responsibilities of Lead Manager

[In terms of Schedule | of SEBI ICDR Regulations|

(1) The lead manager(s) shall prepare a schedule, listing the activity-wise allocation of
responsibilities relating to the issue.

(2) Where circumstances warrant the joint and several responsibility of the lead manager for any
particular activity, the lead manager shall furnish to the Board, when called for, information,
report, rationales, etc. on matters relating to such activity.

(3) The activities and sub-activities shall be as follows:

(a) Capital structuring with the relative components and formalities such as composition of debt
and equity, type of instruments, etc.

(b) Drafiing and design of the offer document, application form and abridged prospectus, and of
the advertisement or publicity material including newspaper advertisements.

(¢) Selection of various intermediaries/agencies connected with the issue, such as registrars to the
issue, printers, advertising agencies, bankers to the issue, collection centres as per schedule XII,
elc.

(d) Marketing of the issue, which shall cover, inter alia, formulating marketing strategics,
preparation of publicity budget, arrangements for selection of (i) media. (ii) centres for holding
conferences of media, stock brokers, investors, elc., (iii) brokers to the issue, and (iv) underwriters
and underwriting arrangement, quantum and distribution of publicity and issue material including
offer documents, application form and abridged prospectus.

(¢) Post-issue activities, including essential follow-up with bankers to the issue and self certified
syndicate banks to get quick estimates of subscription and advising the issuer about the closure of
the issue, finalisation of the basis of allotment after weeding out multiple applications, listing of
instruments, despatch of certificates or demat credit and refunds/unblocking and co-ordination
with various agencies connected with the post-issue activity such as registrars to the issue, bankers
to the issue, self certified syndicate banks and underwriters.

(4) The designated lead manager shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with these
regulations and other requirements and formalities specified by the Registrar of Companies, the

Board and the stock exchanges. =

(5) The designated lead manager sha h&spnnsii%gnsuring that all intermediaries fulfil their

obligations and functions as specifi Yﬁ‘{l? s\with the issuer.

Atvdcale |I
o RBQ ND12133? /
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(6) In case of under-subscription in an issue, the lead manager responsible for underwriting
arrangements shall be responsible for invoking underwriting obligations and ensuring that the
notice for devolvement containing the obligations of the underwriters is issued in terms of these

regulations.

\;‘OTA}?'}_
Ved P hippal '  Ved Prakash Upp&l
Advdtate Notary Adv peate
o Reg No.213g7 | Reg No 21387
o) A;.E.Nagar Q\F GB. Nagar?‘
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Annexure C

List of Promoter and Promoter Group of Share India Securities Limited

S. No. Name Category
L Yash Pal Gupta Promoter
2, Rajesh Gupta Promoter

=7 Parveen Gupta Promoter
4. Sachin Gupta Promoter
5 RS Futures LLP Promoter Group
6. Skyveil Trade Solutions LLP Promoter Group
. Parveen Gupta HUF Promoter Group
8. Yash Pal HUF Promoter Group
9. Rajesh Kumar HUF Promoter Group
10. Suman Gupta Promoter Group
1k Rekha Gupta Promoter Group
12. Sachin Gupta HUF Promoter Group
13. Rachit Gupta HUF Promoter Group
14, Saroj Gupta Promoter Group
15. Sukriti Gupta Promoter Group
16. Sonam Gupta Promoter Group
17. Saurabh Gupta Promoter Group
18, Tripti Gupta Promoter Group
19. Rohin Gupta Promoter Group
20. Rachit Gupta Promoter Group
21. Prerna Gupta Promoter Group
22 Agam Gupta i Promoter Group
23 Prachi Gupta Promoter Group
24, RS Securities Promoter Group
25. Grow Well Solutions Promoter Group
26. Laxmi Trade Solutions [Broup
27. Agro Trade Solutions Aﬁ%ﬁﬁr Group

: REQNO.ETJ
% a 87
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE CAUSED THIS AGREEMENT TO BE
DULY EXECUTED AND DELIVERED BY THEIR DULY AUTHORISED

REPRESENTATIVES AS OF THE DATE WRITTEN BELOW

Signed and delivered for and on behalf of CORPORATE PROFESSIONALS CAPITAL

——

PRIVATE LIMITED e .:,xur ais

Name:

Designation: MLWFJ—EA £ -,-bwa:é"‘/‘-’}
Date: 1-?- 02 . 202 %

Ved Ppap h Uppal

r"’.ul.rﬂ““te
2 Reg No.21387
D), GB.Nagar X
S
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LOE- Rights Issue
26™ December 2022

Ta,

The Board of Directors,

Share India Securities Limited
Noida

Deéar Sir(s),

At the onset, we at Corporate Professionals express our gratitude for posing confidence in our
services, Our Organization is a weam of more than 100 multi-facet professionals being Company
Secretaries, Chartered Accountants and Advocates rendering unique quality and array of services
under one roof. At present we competitively provide services relating to Investment Banking:
Corporate Restructuring; Capital Market Services; Securities Laws Advisory; Corporate
Compliances & Due Diligence; Global Business Setup; Corporate Taxation; Forex &
Overseas Transactions; ESOP & Insider Law Services; Corporate Finance efc. Along with
that. we have a vast network of dexterous professionals as our associates through the country and

abroad too.

Further o our discussions, we, Corporate Professionals Capital (F) L. (herein aflerwards
referred to as Merchant Banker) are pleased to offer our services to your esteemed Orgunisation
(herein afterwards referred to as Client) in relation to the issuance of Securitics on Rights

Basis to your esteemed organization.

L Executive Summary
1.1 The shares of the Company are listed at BSE Limited (“BSE") and Mational Stock
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE") ("hereinafter called the Stock Exchanges™).
1.1 The Company proposes to raise the funds from the existing shareholders of the
Company by offering them securities on the Rights Basis.

W sue of Equity Shares coupled with
A
Ved Pray

i i I
1.4  The issue size propofed is appx, K i e

~ Reg No.21357
9, BB.Nagar

1.3  The Company is prop

detachable Warrants.
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e

On preliminary discussions, the Company is qualifying for Fast Track Rights

Issue.

i Scope of Services:
Our appointment as Merchant Banker shall cover the comprehensive services from

planning stage till the completion of Right Issue process. Detailed Scope of Services with
respect to the Rights |ssue would include:

2.1

22

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.3

28

.9

10
.11

12

-Private and Cenfidential-

Assist the Company in planning the financial and capital structure with relative
components and formalities;

Preparation of Letter of Offer and other certificates and documents in
compliances on the applicable provisions of the SEBI (lssue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and such other applicable provisions
as applicable 1o the Company;

Ensure compliances of various rules, regulations, and guidelines of the Siock
Exchange where the shares of the Company are listed;

Assist in negotiation and finalization of various agencies/intermediaries such as
Banker to the issues, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Brokers. Priniers,
Monitoring Agency, PR & Advertisement Agency, if required ete;

Finalizing and formalizing the appointment of Legal Advisors-Domestic/ 1LCs.
Assist the Company in finalization of advertisements, publicity materials,
newspaper notices application forms etc.:

Filing of Drafi Letter of offer or Letter of offer with Stock Exchanges. Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and modifications and additions as
supgested by SEBI and/or Stock Exchanges:

Co-ordinate with Stock Exchanges for their approval of the Draft Letter of
Offer/Letter of offer;

Co-ordinate with Stock Exchanges for their in-principle listing approval:
Approval and registration of Elnﬂ;\‘ﬁ'ﬂ of Offer with registrar of companics:

Advising the Company fj sﬁegy fina relating to marketing necds and
methods, publicity hudgcth{.(::)rhactmﬂfn \the appropriate time for coming
2 | AGvotate
out with the lssue; 3
Co-ordinate with Bank Rt:? oo i I the collecti
o=ordinate wit = i 5 1 estimates of the callecthions and
B i o

advising the Company
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2.13  Advising on Post issue activitics including the following:
v Preparation & Filing of post issue monitoring reports:
v Allotment of shares, Dispatch of share certificates/refund orders, ensuring
demat credits within stipulated time frame;
v Documentation and formalities relating to Listing and  Trading
permission.
2.14  Any other services which are required to be rendered as a merchani banker 1o the

issue,

3. Time line
Delivering quality services within the least possible time is our utmost endeavour in cach
the assignment we undertake. Keeping in view the same along with adherence to the time
limits prescribed by Regulatory Authorities, we will put our maximum efforts 10 finish off
the entire assignment in the shortest possible time.

*The above time schedule does not include the time taken by company for signing the
documents. The above time schedule may also be extended depending upon the case
specific requirement of Regulatory meeting etc. We will try our level best to complete the
assignment with in time schedule. '

4. Our Professional Fee
4.1 For the services to be rendersd by us mentioned in Clause I hereinabove. we
shall be charging a Professional Fee of Rs. 50 Lacs#t (Rupees Fifiy Lacs only)
plus GST, as applicable.
4.2 The schedule of payment for the fees mentioned above shall be as under:

Stage of Assignment Amount (Rs), plus GST
i Upfront upon signing of Letter of Engagement 10,00,000
Upon Filing of Draft Letter of Offer with SEs 10,00,000

-

Upon receipt of Observ Wﬂl‘ﬁnﬁnpie 10,00,000
Approvals from SEs /' ved 2raiyet Uppal \

At the time of Openidg of the'lssnel atc 10,00,000

Upon receipt of Trad g,éﬁﬁ'- EW 3 10.00.000
arbdand Warrnts
NSE for the Equity Sh H). Wmm@
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.6

6.7

6.8

promoters must be made in consultation with our office,
it must be specifically understood that whatever information and documentation we
shall prepare while executing our responsibilities shall be based upon the facts made
available
to us by the Client and upon our professional understanding of the issue involved.
The Consultant expressly disclaims any financial or other responsibility arising due to
any
action taken by any person on the basis of and documentation or advisory in that
reference.

CP will only have an advisory role and will not bear any responsibility for any {uture
events/ transactions,

Assignment Manager
A dedicated Resource Manager shall be allocated to act as the Assignment Manager for
the proposed Assignment. The details will be shared in due course.

Indemnity

As the Consultant would be acting on behalf of the Client, the Client agrees 10 indem nify
the Consultant, its present and future directors, employees and officers for every liability
(including any claims, damages, suits or legal expenses in defending itself in relation to
the foregoing) arising from the performance and observance of its duties and ohligations
under the Agreement. It is explicitly agreed that notwithstanding anything else stated in
this LOE, the Consultant shall be completely indemnified by the Client for any Hability
arising in the course of, or as a result of this assignment, except for liabilities arising on
account of gross negligence on the part of the Consultant, in which case any potential
liability of the Consultant shall not exceed the aggregate fees payable to the Consultant
under this Agreement.

Post Transaction Rights
The Consultant believes that it its performance and levels
of client service. Following ¢ Consultant would have the

opportunity to review the 1rans: ormance of its team. with the

appropriate members of the Client nnsulmm would have the right to
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use the Logo or other registered mark of the Client, for limited purposes of disclosing it
on its service brochure or other branding material otherwise and to list such Client in s
list of Clientele as and when it may be required, which reference to the specific services
provided.

10,  Any Modifications
Any modification or variation to the Letter of Engagement must be in writing and signed
by an authorized representative of each of us. In the event of any inconsistency beiween
any other agreement and the Letter of Engagement, the Letter of Engagement shall

prevail.

il. Force Majeure
Neither of us shall be in breach of our contractual obligations nor shall either of us incur
any liability to the other, if we or you are unable to comply with the Letter of Engagement
as a result of any cause beyond our or your reasonable contrel, In the event of any such
oceurrence affecting one of us, that one shall be obliged as soon as reasanably praciicable
to notify the other, who shall have the option of suspending or terminating the operation
of the Letter of Engagement on notice taking effect immediately on delivery,

12.  Law and Jurisdiction
‘The Letter of Engagement shall be subject to and governed by Indian law and all
dispute(s) arising from or under the Letter of Engagement shall be subject to the exclusive
jurisdiction of Delhi.

13, Relationship
The Client understands and agrees that there shall be neither an employee - employer
relationship nor an agent - principal relal:qpshl helwecn Consultant and the Client, This

is purely a contractual appointment r I}Tgnment as envisaged in this
agreement. Ved Pra) ';h Uppal
Ad vocaie
Hﬂl’:’ No.21387

14.  Code of Conduct
We shall faithfully and diligently, at
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best of its ability to protect and promote the interests of the client.
We agree to keep all material non-public information provided 1o it by the Cliem
confidential and not disclose such information to any third party except for such
information which:
i Is or becomes generally available to the public (other than as a resull of o
disclosure by us):
li. Was available to us on a non-confidential basis prior to its disclosure by the
Client:

lii. Becomes available to us on a non-confidential basis from a person ther than the
Client who, 1o our knowledge, is not bound by & confidentiality agreement with
the Client or is not otherwise prohibited from transferring such information 1o us:

iv.  The Client agrees may be disclosed;

v. We are requested pursuant to, or required by, law, regulation, legal process or
regulatory authority to disclose;

vi. s disclosed to our affiliates or to its and their respective employees and advisors
(including legal advisors) who need to know in order to enable us to perform its
obligations hereunder and who are informed of the confidential nature of such
information.

The Client irrevocably consents to any such disclosure. Our obligation under this
paragraph shall terminate upon the completion of 6 months of the termination of this

Agreement.
15 TDS Certificates
We understand that payment made by the Client may be liable for deduction of T3S in
the manner provided under the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Client shall be solely
responsible for timely tax deduction and deposit to Income Tax Depanment and shall
ensure that correct copy of “Certificate of TDS Deducted” is submitied with the
Consultants within 15 days of the ga afyiarprarwhich the payment is made along with
teflection of same in the 26AS BFE:H:EL > ;
sh Uppal
AU"-'UCHI-_\ l
16.  Clients' Obligations & Our Discliiowic 21,57
It must be specifically underst ation and documentation we shall
prepare while executing our respe upon the facts made available
Y : T IFag
-Private and Confidential- ot
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to us by the Client and upon our professional understanding of the issue involved.
Further, the Client shall supply all the correct information and authenticated documents
required by us to perform the assignment,

17. Disclaimer
The Stock Exchanges/ SEBI may insist upon having any past violations of SEBI
Takeover Code, Insider Trading Repulations and/ or Listing Regulations. if any.
compounded from SEBI. SEBI may impose penalty relating to the violations. if any.
which the Company may contest on its own, either with or without our help. In case,
during the tenure of the Assignment, any Exemption Applications are needed to be filed
with SEBI/ Stock Exchanges, the same shall not be a part of this Scope. Separate
discussions/ agreement shall be entered into for the same. The same shall be out of Scope
of this LOE.

We are optimistic about initiating a relationship which shall go a long term and shall add vilue to
your organization.

Kindly sign and return a copy of this letter indicating your acceptance.

Thanks & Regards,

For Corporate Profess ED
P 3 ATH QFT
s .U a]
(Anjali Aggarwal) Ved Pr: :kufafe
Partner & Head-Capital Market Services Noﬂt:; ;'N cfm 287
G.B. Nagr

We accept the terms and conditions
For Share India Securities Limited

’.
o
Biseetor/Authorized Signatory e -
A S
2o
1Y




